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June 17, 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to
enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Concord Hospital.
Inc. (Vendor #177653), Concord, NH, for radiology and electrocardiogram services, by
increasing the price limitation by $66,000 from $260,000 to $326,000 and by extending the
completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective retroactive to July 1. 2024, upon
Governor and Council approval. 32% General Funds. 68% Other Funds (Provider Fees).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 2, 2018, item #26,
amended on June 10, 2020, item #20A. and most recently amended on June 1, 2022 (Item #14).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE

PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $7,500 $0 $7,500

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $31,500 $0 $31,500

2021 101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $35,500 $0 $35,500

2022 101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $35,500 $0 $35,500
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2023
101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2024
101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300
$60,000 $0 $60,000

2025

102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $0 $66,000 $66,000

Totai $260,000 $66,000 $326,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Department Is requesting
to extend the existing contract for one (1) additional year to provide sufficient time to conduct a
competitive re-procurement and avoid any interruption In services. This request is Retroactive
because New Hampshire Hospital (NHH) required additional time to evaluate the viability of a
competitive prbcurement given the unique vendor requirements and NHH patient needs.

The purpose of this agreement is to provide onsite radiology and electrocardiogram
services to patients at New Hampshire Hospital. The Contractor will continue to provide mobile
radiology services, including Interpretation of images for patients who are unable to leave the
Acute Psychiatric Services facility. These services include x-rays and electrocardiograms as
deemed appropriate by the attending physician.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2025.

The Department will monitor services, including the:

•  Turnaround time from when the x-rays or electrocardiogram is taken to the time
the results are delivered.

•  Responsiveness to request for services from the time a request is made to the time
the services are provided.

•  Thoroughness of the x-ray or electrocardiogram reports from the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may not be
able to provide onsite radiology and electrocardiogram services that are important to the well-
being and recovery of patients at New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: Patients at New Hampshire Hospital.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

pj-

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Radiology Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Concord Hospital, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2, 2018 (Item #26), as amended on June 6, 2020 (Item #20A). and on June 1, 2022 (Item #14),
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$326,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection
1.3, to read:

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2025, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30, 2025, unless and until an appropriation for these services
has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2026-2027
biennium.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.4, to read:

2.4 The Contractor must provide X-Ray.and EKG services by qualified technicians.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.8, to read :

2.8 The Contract must ensure:

2.8.1 A Board-Certified Radiologist reads and interprets each X-Ray.

2.8.2 A Board-Certified Cardiologist reads and interprets each EKG.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, Subsection 3.1, to
read:

3.1 The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed as follows:

3.1.1. X-Ray services will be reimbursed in accordance with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #3,
Fee Schedule.

3.1.2. EKG services will be reimbursed at the flat rate of $88 each.

8. Modify Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #3, Fee
Schedule, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

K
Concord Hospital. Inc. A-S-1.3 . Contractor Initials

SS-2018-NHH-11 -RADIO-01 -AOS Page 1 of 3
v7.12.23



OocuSign Envelope ID; E5FOOF6C-OB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2024, upon Governor and
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/20/2024

Date Name: Lapointe
Title: chief Executive officer

Concord Hospital, Inc.

6/20/2024

Mamo- Roljert SDate Name: Robert steigmeyer
Title: president and CEO

Concord Hospital. Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2018-NHH-11 -RADIO-01-A03 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlon«d by;

6/21/2024

Date . KJartigi^iobyrto.Guari no

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New.Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Concord Hospital. lnc. A-S-1.3

SS-2018-NHH-11 -RAOIO-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

.  EXHIBIT B-3 Amendment #3

Fee Schedule

CH Radiology/Cardiology Fee Schedule for New Hampshire Hospital Effective
2/1/24

Description COM CPT 2024 Price

ECG Acquistion 7643826 93005 64.17

XR Chest 1 View 7522408 71045 95.34

XR Abdomen KUB 1 View 1169926 74018 95.34

XR Hand Complete 3+ Views Right 1170223 73130 95.34

XR Spine Lumbosacral 2-3 Views 1170470 72100 115.36

XR Hand Complete 3+ Views Left 1170221 73130 95.34

XR Knee 3 Views Left 1170269 73562 95.34

XR Knee 3 Views Right 1170271 73562 95.34

XR Flnger(s) 2+. Views Right 1170153 73140 95.34

XR Flnger{s) 2+ Views left 1170151 73140 95.34

XR Spine Cervical 2 or 3 Views 1170452 72040 95.34

XR Spine Thoracic 2 Views 1170484 72070 115.36

XR Foot Complete 3+ Views Right 1170193 73630 95.34

XR Foot Complete 3+Views Left 1170191 73630 95.34

XR Ankle Complete 3+ Views Right 1169944 73610 95.34

XR Ankle Complete 3+ Views Left 1169942 73610 95.34

XR Toe(s) 2+ Views Left 1170520 73660 95.34

XR Toe(s) 2+ Views Right 1170522 73660 95.34

XR Abdomen KUB 2 Views 7816293 74019 115.36

XR Clavicle Left 1170075 73000 95.34

XR Clavicle Right 1170077 73000 95.34

XR Forearm 2 Views Right 1170199 73090 95.34

XR Forearm 2 Views Left 1170197 73090 95.34

XR Wrist Complete 3+ Views Right 1170614 73110 95.34

XR Wrist Complete 3+Views Left 1170612 73110 95.34

XR Mandible Complete 4+ Views 1170301 70110 115.36.

XR Tibia/Fibula Right 1170518 73590 95.34

XR Tibia/Fibula Left 1170516 73590 95.34

XR Pelvis w 2-3 View Hip Right 7523310 73502 95.34

XR Pelvis w 2-3 View Hip Left 7523308 73502 95.34

XR Ribs Right w/ PA Chest 1170381 71101 115.36

XR Ribs Left w/ PA Chest 1170379 71101 115.36

XR Hip 2-3 Views Right 1170235 73502 95.34

XR Hip 2-3 Views Left 1170233 73502 95.34

SS-2018-NHH-11-RADIO-01-A03

Concord Hospital, inc.
7.14.23

A-1.2

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Dale 6/20/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. Is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 29, 1985. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 74948

Certificate Number: 0006198400

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Lucy Hodder. Esq.. hereby certify that:

1. lama duly elected Secretary of Concord Hospital, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Trustees, duly called and

held on January 22. 2024. at which a quorum of the Trustees were present and voting.

VOTED: That Robert Steiemever. President and CEO, is duly authorized on behalf of Concord

Hospital. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hanipshire and any of

its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,

agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,

which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect

as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of

this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire

will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the

posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that

there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with

the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: 06/06/2024

L^j^C.>^dder, Esq.
Concord Hospital, Secretary of the Board
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A.c^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrYYYY)

m2JZ)2Z

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tehns and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A 'statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER

MARSH USA, LLC.
99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110
'Attn: B0st0n.certrequest@M3rsh.com

CN142100133-CORP-GAUWP-23- '

C6NTACT
NAME:

PHONE FAX
(Arc. No. ExfV tA/C. Not:

E-MAIL
ADDRRSS:

INSURER(S) AFFOROtNG COVERAGE NAica

INSURER A Concord Hosoital Insurance Grouo. LLC

INSURED

CU^al Region Health Care Corporation
& Concord Hospital.,lnc.
250 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

INSURERB Uttertv Mutual Fire Insurance Comoanv 23035

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-011702482-03 REVISION NUMBER: 13

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR TWE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

iNfin
SUBR

WVi) POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
rMM/DD/YYYYt

POLICY EXP
fMM/DDrYYYYI UMITS

A X COMMERCUU. GENERAL UABIUTY CHIG-PRIMARY-2023

Genera] And Professional Liability

Share A Combined Limit Of $3M/112M.

Hospital Professional Liability

Retro Active-Date 054)1/21.

10/01/2023 10/01/2024
EACH OCCURRENCE $  3,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE | ̂ | OCCUR
DAMAGE Td RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrenca) s

X Healthcare Professional Liab MED EXP (Any on* parson) s

(Claims Made) PERSONAL a ADV INJURY s

GEIfL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s  12,000,000

X POLICY 1 \Tci 1 |loc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $

$

AUTOMOBILE LUfilLITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acdrtanil

$

ANY AUTO

HEDULED

rros
)N-OWNEO

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) $

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
Al

BODILY INJURY (Par accidant)

NC

Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acdrfantl $

$

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

OCCUR

CLAJM&4i(ADE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE

DEO 1 ! RETENTION S I

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE rm
0FFICEFVMEMSEREXCLU0E07 H
(Mandatary In NH) " '
If y«s. dMcriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A

EW2.61N-25227e4)23{NH)

SIR $450,000

ifl/01/2023 10/01/2024 X PER
STATUTE

1 OTH-
1 PR

E-L- EACH ACCIDENT s  $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE(  $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT ,  $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUonM Ramark* Sch*dul«. may b« atUchad IT mor* space 1* raquiied)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Stale of NM

Oepartmenl of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

CoTKOrd. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AVTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Concord Hospital Mission Statement

Concord Hospital is a charitable organization
which exists to meet the health needs of individuals

within the communities it serves.

It is the established policy of Concord Hospitol to provide services on the sole basis of the medical necessity
of such services as determined by the medical staff without reference to race, color, ethnicity, national origin,

sexual orientation, marital status, religion, age, gender, disability, or inability to pay for such services.

Approved by Board of Trustees 10-21-02; fteoffirmed by Board 11-23-03, 11-15-04.11-21-05. 11-20-06. 11-19-07, 11-17-08, 11-16-09, 10-18-10, 9-19-11. 9-24-12, 9-23-13. 9-22-14. 9-28-15,
9-26-16.9-25-17,9-24-18,9-23-19.9-28-20
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report 1

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets 3
Consolidated Statements of Operations 5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8
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BAKER

NEWMAN

NOYES

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS 1 NEW HAMPSHIRE

800.244.74441 www.bnncpa.com

0[HLAI THffrLOtAL AOVISOAV** AMO ACCOUKTINAMfrXVOIIK

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the System),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets arid cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the System as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinlori

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the System adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 842, effective
October I, 2022. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.
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The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, inc. and Subsidiaries

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statementsj whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the System's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, arnong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Balfer iWwf 1^^ LlC
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 8, 2023
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

(In thousands)

2023 2022

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  79,917 $  54,630
Short-term Investments . 46,394 15,322,
Accounts receivable 91,318 110,525
Due from afTiliates 1,443 1,099
Supplies 4,744 6,125
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 11.247 12.255

Total current assets 235,063 199,956

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:

Board designated 388,305 340,058
Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves,

escrows and construction funds 34,960 50,118
Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants 44.094 43.514

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted 467,359 433,690

Other noncurrent assets:

Due from affiliates, net of current portion 467 533

Prepaid pension and other assets 43.662 .21.126

Total other noncurrent assets 44,129 21,659

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements 8,435 8,359
Buildings 267,179 266,581
Equipment 278,585 260,992
Construction in progress 10.620 ,  1 1.807

564,819 547,739
Less accumulated depreciation G63.7091 r344.416f

Net property and equipment 201,110 203,323

Operating lease right-of-use assets 26.252 _

S 973.913



DocuSign Envelope ID; E5FOOF6C-OB73-44CD-B82B.52CAFE6ADCCA

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

(In thousands)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of operating lease liabilities

Total current liabilities .

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Operating lease liabilities, less current portion

Reserve for insurance

Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total Concord Hospital net assets

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Total net assets

2023

49,982

46,827
68,589
6,144

5.406

176,948

145,525

21,091

20,759

18.278

544,486
44.094

588,580

2.732

2022

$  50,361
49,107

62,608
4,147

166,223

152,609

23,601

26.490

382,601 368,923

443,500

43.514

487,014

2.691

591,312 489,705

S 973.913

See accompanying notes.



DocuSign Envelope ID: E5FOOF6C-OB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September.30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2023 2022

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions:
Patient service revenue $705,758 $709,396
Other revenue 29,373 . 39,781
Disproportionate share revenue 30,212 29,744
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 5.105 1.889

Total revenue and other support without donor restrictions 770,448 780,810

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 377,209 380,846
Employee benefits 81,591 92,363

Supplies and other 152,635 156,674

Purchased services 57,796 51,392

Professional fees 17,021 16,498

Depreciation and amortization 27,291 28,953

Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 32,035
Interest 4.275 4.568

Total operating expenses 750.465 763.329

Income from operations 19,983 17,481

Nonoperating income (loss):
Gifts and bequests without donor restrictions 346 261

Investment income (loss) and other 49,961 (48,917)
Other nonoperating expense (856) (856)
Net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost 4.733 1.321

Total nonoperating income (loss) 54.184 (48,191)

Consolidated excess (deficiency) of revenues and
nonoperating income (loss) over expenses 74,167 (30,710)

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses
attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary fiSI) (227)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income
(loss) over expenses attributable to the System £ 73.986 £(30.937^

See accompanying notes.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2023 2022

System net assets without donor restrictions:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income

(loss) over expenses attributable to the System $ 73,986 $(30,937)
Net transfers from afTiliates 97 343

Other changes (339) -

Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchases of property and equipment 753 1,886

Pension adjustment 26.489 (5,502)

Increase (decrease) in System net assets without donor restrictions 100,986 (34,210)

System net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions 2,704 5,057

Net investment gain (loss) 3,664 (3.923)
Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations (302) (243)
Unrealized gains (losses) on trusts administered by others 372 (2,505)
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (5,105) (1,889)

Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchases of property and equipment (753) (1,886)

Increase (decrease) in System net assets with donor restrictions 580 (5,389)

Increase (decrease) in System net assets. 101,566 (39,599)

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary:
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary (140) (270)
Excess of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses

attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary 181 227

Increase (decrease) in noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiar>' 41 (43)

Increase (decrease) in total net assets 101,607 (39,642)

Net assets, beginning of year 489.705 529.347

Net assets, end of year $591.312 smm

See accompanying notes.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022
(in thousands)

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in total net assets $ 101,607 :$ (39,642)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in total net

assets to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions (2,704) (5,057)
Depreciation and amortization 27,291 28.953
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (46,446) 63,991
Bond premium and issuance cost amortization (940) (968)
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net (5,012) (4,893)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary 140 270

Loss on disposal of property and equipment - (270)
Pension adjustment (26,489) 5,502
Noncash lease expense 245 -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 19,207 (15,805)
Supplies, prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,389 (1,149)
Prepaid pension and other assets 1,900 (4,022)
Due from affiliates (278) 14

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (379) 3,289
Accrued compensation and related expenses (2,280) 5,125
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements 5,981 (33,795)
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities (5,665) (19,403)
Reserve for insurance (2.842) (5.331)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 65,725 (23,191)

Cash flows from investing activities:
. Purchases of property and equipment (25,078) (22,032)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 11,362
Purchases of investments (99,562) (23,369)
Proceeds from sales of investments 81,450 67,838
Equity distributions from affiliates 4.518 4.445

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (38,672) 38,244

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt (4,147) (3,020)
Bond issuance costs — (26)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary (140) (270)
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions 2.521 5.171

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (1.766) 1.855

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25;287 16,908

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 54.630 37.722

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions:
See Note 16 with respect to certain noncash

activities related to leases.

See accompanying notes.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Concord Hospital, Inc. (the Hospital), located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care
hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for
residents within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Region Health Care Corporation (CRHC).

In 1985, the then Concord Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and
became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was formed as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were
conveyed to the new entity. The endowments were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital,' which
is the true party in interest. Effective October I, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the Hospital.

In March 2009, the Hospital created The Concord Hospital Trust (the Trust), a separately incorporated,
not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In establishing the Trust, the
Hospital transferred philanthropic funds with donor restrictions,'including board designated funds,
endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly formed organization together
with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the Hospital's charitable mission
and reflect the specific intentions of the donors who made these gifts.

Subsidiaries of the Hospital are as follows:

Capital Resion Health Care Development Corporation fCRHCDC) is a not-for-profit real estate
corporation that owns and operates medical office buildings and other properties.

Capital Region Health Ventures Corporation (CRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporation that engages in
health care delivery partnerships and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surger>' and diagnostic
facilities independently.and in cooperation with other entities.

NH Cares ACO. LLC (NHC) and Concord Hospital ACO CCH-ACO) are both single member limited
liability companies that engage in providing medical services to Medicare beneficiaries as accountable
care organizations. NHC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. During
2022, NHC was transferred to an unrelated entity for no consideration and the Hospital formed CH-
ACO, which operates in a manner consistent with NHC and had minimal activity during fiscal years
2022 and 2023.

Concord Hospital - Laconia (CH-Laconia) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a licensed
hospital providing inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Laconia, New Hampshire. The CH-Laconia facility includes 137 acute care beds
and was designated a Rural Referral Center in 1986, and a Sole Community Hospital in 2009. Admitting
physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area. .



DocuSign Envelope ID; E5F00F6C-DB73^CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concord Hospital — Franklin (CH-Franklin) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a licensed
hospital providing inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Franklin, New Hampshire. The CH-Franklin facility was designated a Critical
Access Hospital effective July 1, 2004, and includes 25 acute care beds. CH-Franklin also operates a 10
bed designated psychiatric receiving facility. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the
local area.

Granite Shield Insurance Exchanse and Subsidiaries CGSIE) was formed on December 20, 2010, in the
State of Vermont as an industrial insured reciprocal insurance entity and unincorporated association.
GSIE commenced underwriting activities on January I, 2011. GSIE was formed to provide healthcare
professional liability, general liability and medical stop loss insurance to its subscribers through GSI
Services, LLC (GSI), the attomey-in-facl. GSI was formed in the State of Vermont as a limited liability
company on December 14, 2010, and acts as an agent to enable the subscribers of GSIE to exchange
insurance contracts. Through December 31.2020, GSI was equally controlled by each of the subscribers
of GSIE, all of which were health systems located in the State of New Hampshire, inclusive of the
Hospital. Effective January I, 2021, the Hospital became the sole voting member of GSIE, resulting in
all activity of GSIE being recorded within the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

GSIE discontinued writing coverages effective October I, 2022, and its current operations consist of
runoff claims for a previously withdrawn subscriber, as well as the current subscriber, CRHC.

Concord Hospital Insurance Group. LLC (CHIG) is a Vermont domiciled single parent captive entity
and operates in a manner and conducts activities similar to GSIE, as described above. CHIG began
operations in late 2022. GSIE entered into a loss portfolio transfer agreement with CHIG in September
2022, whereas GSIE would transfer all of its existing and future claims to CHIG, with the exception of
acts prior to CRHC. This transfer was completed prior to September 30, 2023.

Concord Endoscopv Center. LLC (CEO is a New Hampshire limited liability company that engages in
providing gastrointestinal services, including the diagnosis and treatment of digestive and liver diseases.
CEC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. CRH VC holds a majority interest
and control of CEC.

Capital Region Healthcare Services Corporation (CRHSC) is a for-profit provider of health care
services, including an eye surgery center and assisted living facility. CRHSC became a subsidiary of
the Hospital effective October I, 2022.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC, NHC, CH-
ACO, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, GSIE, CHIG, CEC and CRHSC. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Hospital, the Trust, CH-Laconia
and CH-Franklin constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2023 and 2022 to certain debt
described in Note 7.



DocuStgn Envelope ID; E5F00F6C-DB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Principles ofConsolidation

Noncontrolling interests In less-than-wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries of the System are
presented as a component of total net assets to distinguish between the interests of the System and the
interests of the noncontrolling owners. Revenues, expenses and nonoperating income (loss) from these
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated amounts presented on the consolidated statements of
operations. Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses attributable
to the System separately presents the amounts attributable to the controlling interest.

NoncontroUinB Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to a parent. The System's accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated amounts, which include the amounts attributable
to the System and the noncontrolling interest. The System recognizes as a separate component of net
assets and earnings the portion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests based on the
portion of the entity not owned by the System.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration ofCredit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
System's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and
amounts are presented net of expected explicit and implicit price concessions, including estimated
implicit price concessions from uninsured patients. The System's investment portfolio consists of
diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The System's investment in one fund, the
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total System investments as of September 30,2023
and 2022.

Cash and Cash Eauivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted. The System maintains its cash in bank deposit
accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The System has not experienced any
losses on such accounts.

10
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Supplies

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees for insurance reserves, escrows,
construction funds, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes), and donor-restricted investments.

Investments and Investment Income (Loss)

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income (loss) (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) and the net
change in unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues
and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on cenain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are without donor restrictions. The System's interest in
the fair value of the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted and as net assets

with donor restrictions. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are reported as increases or
decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events.

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the donor
or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
identified spending objectives.

Bo^d designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

I I
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Soendme Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accprdance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e)the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization..

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The System has a current spending policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value.

Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable for which the unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the
right to consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Accounts receivable at September 30, 2023 and 2022 reflect the fact that any
estimated uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a direct
reduction to accounts receivable rather than, allowance for doubtful accounts. At September 30, 2023
and 2022, estimated implicit price concessions of $26,391 and $29,203, respectively, had been recorded
as reductions to accounts receivable balances to enable the System to record revenues and accounts
receivable at the estimated amounts expected to collected.

Accounts receivable as of September 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 are $91,318, $1 10,525 and $94,720,
respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for impairment and less accumulated depreciation.
The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets

. over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, depreciation
expense was $27,291 and $28,953, respectively.

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes arhounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. There was no interest
expense capitalized during 2023 or 2022.

12
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as support without donor
restrictions, and are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss)
over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service.

Intamible Assets

The System reviews its intangible and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the carrying
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these assets
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended September 30, 2023
or 2022.

Intangible assets are included within other noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortizable intangible assets consist of the following at
September 30: .

2023 2022

Cost $ 8,556 $ 8,556
Accumulated amortization (2.140) (1.284)

Amortizable intangible assets, net S 6.416 $ 7.272

Amortization expense was $856 during the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 and is recorded
within other nonoperating expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through their useful lives is as follows:

2024 $ 856

2025 856

2026 856

2027 - 856

2028 856

Thereafter 2.136

S 6.416

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(in thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Bond Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 12). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are hot reported as revenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 were approximately $130 and $133, respectively.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassifled as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions for operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for purchases of property and equipment (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions
have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Patient Service Revenue

Revenues generally relate to contracts with patients in which the System's performance obligations are
to provide health care services to patients. Revenues are recorded during the period obligations to
provide health care services are satisfied. Performance obligations for inpatient services are generally
satisfied over a period of days. Performance obligations for outpatient services are generally satisfied
over a period of less than one day. The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve
a third-party payor (Medicare, Medicaid, managed care health plans and commercial insurance
companies, including plans offered through the health insurance exchanges) and the transaction prices
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicare and Medicaid or negotiated
with managed care health plans and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payers. The
payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically
specify payments at amounts less than standard charges, ivledicare generally pays for inpatient and
outpatient services at prospectively determined rates based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Services provided to patients having Medicaid coverage are generally paid at prospectively determined
rates per discharge, per identified service or per covered member. Agreements with commercial
insurance carriers, managed care and preferred provider organizations generally provide for payments
based upon predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee-for-service rates.
Management continually reviews the revenue recognition process to consider and incorporate updates
to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms resulting from
contract renegotiations and renewals.

14
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022 .
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The collection of outstanding receivables for Medicare, Medicaid, managed care payers, other third-
party payors and patients is the System's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating
performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts, including patient
accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the amounts covered by the applicable
agreement, but patient responsibility amounts (deductibles and copayments) remain outstanding.
Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from patients. Estimated implicit
price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts.
Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and external collection efforts have been

performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based upon management's assessment of
historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and economic,conditions, trends in federal,
state and private employer health care coverage and other collection indicators. Management relies on
the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and collections at facilities that represent a majority
of hospital revenues and accounts receivable (the "hindsight analysis") as a primary source of
information in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable. Management performs the hindsight
analysis regularly, utilizing rolling twelve-months accounts receivable collection and write-off data.
Management believes its regular updates to the estimated implicit price concession amounts provide
reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable. These routine, regular changes
in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-
to-period comparisons of operations.

The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis which
are settled with retroactive adjustments upon, completion and audit of related cost finding reports.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. For the years ended September 30,2023 and 2022, patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $4,700 and $5,100, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 40% and 5% and
39% and 6% of the System's patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation.

Excess {Deficiency) ofRevenues and Nonoperafing Income (Loss) Over Expenses

.The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for contributions and
pledges without donor restrictions, the related philanthropy expenses and investment income which are
recorded as nonoperating income (loss).

15
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization arid Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating
income (loss) over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from
excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses, consistent with industry
practice, include the permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services,
pension adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such ̂ sets).

Estimated iVorkers' Compensation. Malpractice and Health Care Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation-, malpractice and health care claims includes
estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in Note 11. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services
benefitted.

Income Taxes

The Hospital, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. NHC was organized as
a single member limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a disregarded entity for federal
and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, all income or losses and applicable tax credits
are reported on the member's income tax returns, with the exception of taxes due to the State of New
Hampshire. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and concluded the System has maintained
its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain
tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. GSIE, CHIG, NHC, CH-ACO, CEC and CRHSC account for income taxes in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740,
Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 is an asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between.the tax and financial reporting basis of certain assets and liabilities. Resulting income tax
expense and the temporary differences between the tax and financial reporting basis are not material.

Advertising Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled $247 and $168 for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

16



DocuSign Envelope ID: E5F00F6C-DB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summar\' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued!

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The standard, including subsequently issued amendments, collectively
referred to as Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases, established the principles that
lessees and lessors will apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the
amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. ASC 842 did not have a significant
impact on lessor accounting. The System adopted this standard using the modified retrospective
transition approach as applied to leases existing as of or entered into after the adoption date (October 1,
2022) in fiscal year 2023. See Note 16 for a discussion of the System's adoption of this standard and its
impact on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

At the inception of an arrangement, the System determines whether the arrangement is, or contains, a
lease based on the unique facts and circumstances present in the arrangement. A lease is a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property or equipment (ah
identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The System determines if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified-asset for a period of time. The System assesses
throughout the period of use whether the System has both of the following: (I) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and (2) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed if the terms of the contract are changed.

Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the terms of the lease agreement and certain
characteristics of the identified asset. Leases with a term greater than one year are recognized on the
balance sheet as right-of-use assets and lease obligations, as applicable.

The interest rate implicit in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the System
has elected to utilize a risk-free rate as the rate to discount lease payments.

Lease liabilities are initially recorded based on the present value of lease payments over the expected
remaining lease term. Lease payments are comprised of fixed and in-substance fixed contract
consideration. The System has made a policy election not to separate lease components, nonlease
components, and noncomponents. The right-of-use asset is based on the lease liability, adjusted for
certain items such as lease prepayments or lease incentives received. Finance lease assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis, with interest costs reported separately, over the lesser of the useful life of the
leased asset or lease term. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-Hne basis. Variable lease
payments are expensed as incurred.

The System assesses at the commencement of a lease any options to extend or teiminate the .lease
agreement, and will include in the lease term any extensions or renewals which it determines it is
reasonably certain to exercise. Assumptions made at the lease commencement date are're-evaluated
upon the occurrence of certain events, including a lease modification. A lease modification results in a
separate contract when the modification grants the lessee an additional right-of-use not included in the
original lease and when lease payments increase commensurate with the standalone price for the
additional right-of-use. When a lease modification results in a separate contract, it is accounted for in '
the same manner as a new lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Risks and Uncertainties

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of corbnavirus (C0VID-I9)
a-pandemic. The C0V1D-I9 pandemic has significantly affected employees, patients, systems,
communities and business operations, as well as the U.S. economy and financial markets. Since the
declaration of the pandemic, the System has received approximately $57,885 of accelerated Medicare

payments (see Note 6), approximately $30,668 related to the Coronavinis Aid, Relief and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act) Provider Relief Funds (PRF) and approximately $8,800 in rural payments
related to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). Distributions from the PRF and ARP A are not subject
to repayment, provided the System is able to attest to and comply with the terms and conditions of the
funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used for healthcare-related
expenses or lost revenue attributable to C0V1D-I9. Such payments are accounted for as government
grants, and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable
assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds will be met. Based on an
analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the PRF and ARPA and the impact of the
pandemic on operating results through September 30, 2022, the System recognized approximately
$10,000 related to PRF and ARPA, and these payments'were recorded within other revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 2022. No
amounts related to PRF or ARPA were recognized within other revenues during the year ended
September 30,2023. The remaining funds were recognized within other revenues during previous years.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of payroll tax incurred
during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until December 2021, and the
remaining half until December 2022. At September 30, 2022, the System had deferred balances of

payroll taxes totaling $4,646 which were recorded within accrued compensation and related expenses on
the accompanying 2022 consolidated balance sheet. Amounts were fully repaid during the year ended
September 30, 2023.

The System will continue to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the PRF, ARPA and
other potential assistance programs and available grants, and the impact of the pandemic on revenues
and expenses, if the System is unable to attest to or comply with current or future terms and conditions,
the System's ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be impacted.

, Reclassifications

Certain 2022 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2023 consolidated financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and
December 8, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2. Transactions With Affiliates

The System provides funds to CR-HC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes. .The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as

- charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, transfers received from
affiliates were $97 and $343, respectively.

Amounts due the System, prim^ily from joint ventures, totaled $1,910 and $1,632 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts have been classified'as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($467 and $533 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2023) payments due monthly, interest income amounted to $34 and
$52 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

A brief description of CRHCs affiliated entities is as follows:

•  Granite VNA (formerly Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. and Subsidiary) provides
home health care services.

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. provides behavioral health services. .

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations from net assets with donor restrictions
were $302 and $243 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

3. Financial Assets and Liquidit\' Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the following at September 30, 2023:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 79,917
Short-term investments 46,394

Accounts receivable 91,318

Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves,
debt service and construction costs 18.380

S236.009
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3. Financial Assets and Liauidih' Resources fContinuedt

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments include bank
deposits, money market funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily
liquidity to the System. In addition, the System has board-designated assets without donor restrictions
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of September 30, 2023, the balance of liquid investments in board-designated assets was
$343,827.

4. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Short-term investments totaling $46,394 and $15,322 at September 30,2023 and 2022, respectively, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents.. Assets whose use is limited or restricted are carried
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2023 2022

Board designated funds:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,295 $  2,771
Fixed income securities 22,124 21,839
Marketable equity and other securities 326,500 301,116
Inflation-protected securities 14.386 14.332

388,305 340,058

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:
Fixed income securities 2,967 2,501

Self-insurance escrows and construction funds:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,255 8,648
Fixed income securities 13,357 24,074
Marketable equity securities 17.381 14.895

31,993 47,617

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,857 7,553
Fixed income securities 1,372 1,606
Marketable equity securities 24,965 23,091
Inflation-protected securities 1,100 1,020
Trust funds administered by others 10,208 9,836
Other 592 408

44.094 43.514

S467.359 $433.690

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $205,295 and $203,040 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 15.
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4. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued)

investment income (loss), net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets
whose use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at
September 30:

2023 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Interest and dividends $ 7,904 $ 7,099
Investment income from trust funds administered by others 541 599
Net realized gains on sales of investments 5,383 4,079
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 37.459 (61.1773

51,287 (49,400)

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Interest and dividends 432 465

Net realized gains on sales of investments 395 608
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 3.209 (7.5013

4.036 (6.4283

£55.323 £(55.8283

In compliance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
recognized in other operating revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income reflected in other operating revenue was $1,767 and $2,300 in 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Investment management fees expensed and reflected in investment income (loss) and other were $857
and $922 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

5. Retirement Plans

The System sponsors a defined contribution plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) covering eligible employees of the System. Participants are allowed to make pre
tax or post-tax Roth 403(b) contributions, or a combination of the two. The System does not make
matching contributions. Effective January 1, 2024, the System elected to amend this plan to institute
employer nonelective and matching contributions, based on certain eligibility requirements, as well as
implementing an automatic deferral arrangement equal to 3% of eligible compensation, as further defined
in the amendment.

The System sponsors two noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans (the Retirement Plan for
Employees of Concord Hospital (CM Plan) and the Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital -
Laconia (CH-Laconia Plan)), (collectively, the Plans), which cover substantially all employees of the
System. The Plans provide benefits based on an employee's years of service, age and compensation over
those years. The System's funding policy for the plans is to contribute annually the amount needed to
meet or exceed actuarially determined minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 {EK\S> A).
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5. Retirement Plans (Continued)

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plans under ASC 715, Compensation Retirement
Benefits, which requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or underfunded
status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.

On September 26, 2022, the Plans were amended to offer certain participants age 62 and older the option
to receive a lump-sum distribution as payment for grandfathered benefits. The eligible participants had
180 days to elect this benefit, beginning October 1, 2022.

During fiscal year 2022, the CH-Laconia Plan incurred a settlement charge due to lump sums paid in
excess of the settlement threshold for the Plan year. The settlement charge totaled $450 and is reflected
as a component of net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost.

On October 24, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a merger of the CH Plan into the CH-Laconia
Plan. The merger of the Plans was effective December 31, 2022 and the surviving plan was named the
Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital (Concord Hospital Plan).
)

Effective January I, 2024, the Board of Trustees elected to amend the Concord Hospital Plan to
discontinue future participation in the Plan by any employees who are hired or rehired after
December 31, 2023, as further defined in the amendment.

The following table summarizes the Plans' funded status at September 30;

2023 2022

Funded status:

Fair value of plan assets $ 343,471 $ 319,496
Projected benefit obligation f319.529J (329.4771

$  23.94Z $  (9.9811

Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative
expenses paid $  33,965 $  19,314

Net periodic benefit cost 8,565 15,198

The table below presents details about the Plans, including the funded status, components of net periodic
benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded status and cost:

2023 2022

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $329,477 $392,275
Service cost 13,298 16,519
Interest cost 18,596 13,217
Actuarial gain (7,877) (69,169)
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid (33,965) (19,313)
Settlements and plan amendments — (4,052)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $319.529 $329,477
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5. Retirement Plans (Continued^

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year •
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefit payments and administrative expenses
Settlements

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status and amount recognized in
noncurrent assets (liabilities) at September 30

2023

$319,496
41,940

16,000

(33,965)

2022

$375,094

(59,286)
27,900

(19,313)

(4.899^

S343.471 $319.496

$ 23.942 $ (9.98 n

Amounts recognized as a change in net assets without donor restrictions during the years ended
September 30,2023 and 2022 consist of:

Net actuarial (gain) loss
Net amortized loss

Prior service credit amortization

Impact of settlement

Total amount recognized

Pension Plan Assets

2023

$(23,273)
(3.372)

156

2022

:  15,858
(10,149)

243

(450)

$r26.489^ ■$ 5.502

The fair values of the Plans' assets as of September 30,2023 and 2022, by asset category are as follows
(see Note 15 for level definitions). In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain
investments that are measured using the net value per share practical expedient have not been classified
in the fair value hierarchy. ,

2023 2022
Short-term investments (Level I):

Money market funds $ 12,804 $  4,114
Equity securities (Levd I):

Mutual funds - domestic 145,825 115,233
Mutual funds - international — 10,302
Mutual funds - inflation hedge 12,946. 12,909

Fixed income securities (Level 1):
Mutual funds - fixed income 37.877 45.965

209,452 188,523
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5. Retirement Plans (Continued)

2023 2022

Funds measured at net asset value:
Equity securities:

Funds-of-funds $ 81,170 $ 81,961
Collective trust funds:

Equities 46,327 40,727
Fixed income 6.522 8.285

52.849 49.012

Total investments at fair value $343.471 $319.496

The Concord Hospital Plan's target asset policy guidelines include total short-term investments between
0% and 20%, total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and
80%, and other strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to
the merger of the Plans described above, included total short-term investments between 0% and 20%,
total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and 80%, and other
strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH-Laconia Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to the
merger of the Plans described above, included total equity securities of 50% and total fixed income
securities of 50%.

The Plans' asset allocations by asset category are as follows as of September 30;

2023 2022

Short-term investments 4% 1%

Equity securities 70% 69%

Fixed income securities 13% 17%

Other 13% 13%

The funds-of-funds in the Concord Hospital Plan are invested with various investment managers and
have various restrictions on redemptions. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately
$19 million at September 30, 2023 allows for semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One
manager holding approximately $9 million at September 30^ 2023 allows for monthly redemptions, with
15 days' notice. Four managers holding amounts totaling approximately $34 million at September 30,
2023 allow for quarterly redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two managers holding
amounts totaling approximately $16 million at September 30, 2023 allow for annual redemptions, with
notices ranging from 60 to 90 days. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately $3 million at
September 30, 2023 allow for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 d^ys. The
collective trust funds allow for daily, weekly or monthly redemptions, with notices ranging frorh 6 to 10
days. Certain funds also may include a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting
investments to cash, limit the percent of the investment that can be redeemed each redemption period,
or are subject to certain lock periods.

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based oh a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities,
and real estate.
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5. Retirement Plans (Continued)

The System's investment policy for its pension plans is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the
Plans' investments and the performance of the investment managers.

Amounts included in expense consist of the following for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 13,298 $ 16,519
Interest cost 18,596 13,217

Expected return on plan assets * (26,545) (24,894)
Amortization of prior service credit and loss . 3,216 9,906
Settlements - 450

Net periodic benefit cost S 8.565 $ 15.198

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plans at September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $313,562 and
$315,168, respectively.

2023 2022

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:
Discount rate 6.11% 5.63%

Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%

Weighted average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 5.63% 3.33%

Expected return on plan assets 7.60% 6.50% - 7.75%
Cash balance credit rate 3.00% - 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 2.50%-3.00%

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plans. This included
considering the plans' asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plans, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The System funds the pension plans and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds
the plans annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plans
in excess of the minimum required amount.
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5. Retirement Plans (Continued)

Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including performance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $16,000 in cash contributions to the Concord Hospital
Plan in 2024.

Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Year Ended September 30

2024 $ 27,172
2025 24,447
2026 26,747
2027 28,696
2028 28,774
2029-2033 , 147,475

6. Estimated Third-Partv Paver Settlements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows: -

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program afler the
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to determine
any final settlements.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and DisproDOrtionate Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in Slate fiscal years 2023 and 2022. The
amount of tax incurred by the System for 2023 and 2022 was $32,647 and $32,035, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded within revenue without donor restrictions and other support
and amounted to $30,212 in 2023 and $29,744 in 2022, net of reserves referenced below.
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6. Estimated Third-PartV Favor Settlements (Continued)

The Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 201 1 to 2019, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It Is
possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address
Its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redistributions.

Subsequent to year end, the Hospital filed suit against the NH Department of Health and Human Services
• over their plan for the redistribution of DSH payments from 201 1 to 2017. All amounts related to the
redistribution plan have been fully reserved for as of September 30, 2023.

Medicaid

Inpatlent services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates
per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The
System Is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost
reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Olher

The System has also entered Into payment agreements with certain commercial Insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements Includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, and
prospectively determined rates.

The accrual for estimated .third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2018 for Medicare and 2017 for Medicaid. Settlements for CH-LaconIa have
been finalized through 2019, for Medicare and Medicaid. Settlements far CH-Franklln have been
finalized through 2021 for Medicare and 2019 for Medicaid.

During fiscal year 2020, the System requested accelerated Medicare payments as provided for In the
CARES Act, which allowed for eligible health care facilities to request up to six months of advance
Medicare payments for acute care hospitals or up to three months of advance Medicare payments for
other health care providers. One year from the date of receipt of the advance payments (beginning April
2021) 25% of the advances were recouped In the first eleven months. An additional 25% of the advances
were recouped In the next six months, with the entire amount repayable In 29 months. Any outstanding
balance after 29 months was repayable at a 4% Interest rate. During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the
System received $57,885 from these accelerated Medicare payment requests. At September 30, 2022,
the current portion due within a year, totaling $248 was recorded under the caption "accrual for estimated
third-party payor settlements" In the accompanying 2022 balance sheet. Amounts were repaid in full
during the year ended September 30, 2023.
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7. Long-Term Debt

Long-tenn debt consists of the following at September 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)
Revenue bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2021 A; interest
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% per year and principal payable in
annual installments ranging from $1,685 to $3,095 through
October 2042, including unamortized original issue premium

, of$6,219 in 2023 and $6,950 in 2022 $ 46,280, $48,610
2020A note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2026, interest at 1.57%

per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal payments
ranging from $2,469 to $2,580 10,093 12,520

2020B note payable to a bank, due October I, 2035 (lender has the
option to extend the maturity date through October 1, 2043), interest
at 2.26% per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal
payments ranging from $991 to $2,942 beginning October 2023.
Final balloon payment of $10,157 due October i, 2035, if the
maturity date is not extended by the lender. This note converted into
tax-exempt revenue bonds effective July 6, 2022. As a result of the
"conversion, the interest rate was reduced to 1.84% 36,582 36,582

NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017; interest
of 5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.
Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,
including unamortized original issue premium of $5,923 in 2023
and $6,249 in 2022 60.012 60.459

152,967 158,171 ,

Less unamortized bond issuance costs (1,298) (1,415)
Less current portion C6.I44) (4.147)

-  SI45.525 $152.609

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $12,520 note payable agreement (2020A note) with a lender
to advance refund $ 11,780 of the Series 201 1 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. No amounts of the
Series 2011 advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and 2022.

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $36,582 note payable agreement (2020B note) with a lender
to advance refund the Series 20I3A NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. As of September 30, 2022
$33,785 of the Series 2013A advance refunded bonds, which were considered extinguished for purposes
of these consolidated financial statements, remained outstanding. No amounts of the Series 2013A
advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023. In conjunction with the
issuance of the 2020B note, in order to further reduce debt service obligations, the Hospital, NHHEFA
and the lender entered into a forward purchase agreement. Under the forward purchase agreement, the
Hospital had the option to request NHHEFA to issue tax-exempt revenue bonds on or after July 3, 2022
to refinance the 2020B note. The Hospital exercised this option on July 6, 2022, which resulted in the
interest rate decreasing from 2.26% to 1.84%.
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7. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

In December 2017, $62,004 (including an original issue premium of S7,794) ofNHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routine capital expenditures.

Substantially all the property and equipment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovation
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, are pledged as collateral for
all outstanding long-term debt. In addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital, CH-Laconia and CH-
Franklin are also pledged as collateral for all outstanding long-term debt. CH-Laconia and CH-Franklin
also pledge gross receipts as collateral for the outstanding Series 2021A Revenue Bonds. The most
restrictive financial covenants require a 1. 10 to 1.0 ratio of aggregate income available for debt service
to total annual debt service and a day's cash on hand ratio of 75 days. The System was in compliance
with its debt covenants at September 30, 2023 and 2022.

The obligations of the Hospital under the above bond indentures are guaranteed by the Hospital, CH-.
Laconia and CH-Franklin and are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest paid on long-term debt amounted to $5,215 and $5,531 for the years ended September 30, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years ending September 30
and thereafter are as follows:

2024 $ 6,144
2025 4,455

2026 5,181

2027 6,949
2028 4,516

Thereafter 1 13.580
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8. Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Loss Contimencies

The System insures its medical malpractice risks through GSIE, a multiprovider captive insurance
company. As discussed in Note I, during 2022, GSIE began the process of winding down operations
and was replaced with CHIG.

GSIE and CHIG provide claims-made medical stop loss coverage to their subscriber health systems.
Subsequent to December 31, 2020, the System is the sole remaining subscriber of GSIE. The System is
also the only subscriber of CHIG. GSIE and CHIG purchase.reinsurance from three reinsurers to limit
potential exposure to the System. The reinsurance policies in place are subject to renewal on January I,
2024, and, after the System's primary retained layer of $2 million (GSIE) and $3 million (CHIG) per
occurrence and $12 million aggregate, cover up to $25 million per occurrence and aggregate per annum.
The failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in additional losses to GSIE and CHIG,
and those losses could be significant to GSIE, CHIG and the System.

The reserve, for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and the related reinsurance recoverables
-  includes case basis estimates of reported losses, plus supplemental reserves for incurred but not reported

losses (IBNR) calculated based upon loss projections utilizing historical and industry data. An
independent consulting actuary is involved in establishing this reserve and the related reinsurance
recoverables. Management of the System believes that GSlE's and CHIG's aggregate reserve for unpaid
losses and loss adjustment expenses and related reinsurance recoverables at year-end represent its best

. estimate, based on the available data, of the amount necessary to cover the ultimate cost of losses;
however, because of the nature of the insured risk's and limited historical experience, actual loss
experience may not conform to the assumptions used in determining the estimated amounts for such
liability and corresponding asset at the consolidated balance sheet date. Accordingly, the ultimate
liability and corresponding asset could be significantly in excess of or less than the amount indicated in
these consolidated financial statements. As adjustments to these estimates become necessary, such
adjustments are reflected in current year operations. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers have been
reduced to their net realizable value.

At September 30, 2023, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System, which, in
the opinion of management will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there
any unassorted claims or incidents which require loss accruals. The System has established reserves for
unpaid claim amounts for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported
claims and for unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not reported. The amounts of
the reserves total $17,690 and $20,253 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are reflected
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within reserves for insurance. The possibility exists,
as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be
asserted against the System.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In accordance with ASL) No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System recorded a
liability of approximately $3,100 and $3,300, respectively related to estimated professional liability
losses. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System also recorded a receivable of $3,100 and $3,300,
respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential
losses. These amounts are included in reserve for insurance ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300
at September 30, 2022), and other assets ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300 at September 30,
2022), respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against
excessive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $4,061 and $3,888 at
September 30,2023 and 2022, respectively, are recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $2,967 and $2,501 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in assets whose use is limited or restricted in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters, will be^
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $550 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30^ 2023 and 2022, have been recorded as a liability of
$13,631 and $13,286, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
within accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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9. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:

2023 2022

Purpose restriction:
Health education and program services $18,770 $18,991
Capital acquisitions 441 610
Indigent care 83 116
Pledges receivable with stipulated
purpose and/or time restrictions 575 391

19,869 20,108

Perpetual in nature:
Health education and program services 20,859 20,225
Capital acquisitions 803 803
Indigent care 2,105 2,105
Annuities to be held in perpetuity 458 273

. 24.225 23.406

Total net assets with donor restrictions $44.094 $43.514

10. Patient Service Revenue

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue for the System by major payor sources is as follows
for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022

Private payor (includes coinsurance and deductibles) . $388,492 $391,300
Medicare 282,111 276,967
Medicaid 34,880 40,340
Self-pay . 275 789

$705.758 $709.396
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11. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30:

S637.69Q

Health General and Fund-

Services Administrative raisine Total

2023

Salaries and wages $316,143 $ 60,492 $  574 , $377,209

Employee benefits 68,381 13,086 124 81,591

Supplies and other 131,206 21,241 188 152,635

Purchased services 37,677 1.9,896 223 57„796

Professional fees 17,021 - - 17,021

Depreciation and amortization 18,310 8,692 289 27,291

Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 -
- 32,647

Interest 2.868 1.362 45 4.275

$^24,2?? $J24.7^? $ 1.443 S750.465

2022

Salaries and wages $320,669 $ 59,597 $  580 $380,846

Employee benefits 77,767 14,455 141 92,363

Supplies and other 135,008 21,486 180 156,674

Purchased services 33,227 17,988 177 51,392

Professional fees 16,495 3 - 16,498

Depreciation and amortization 19,424 9,222 307 28,953

Medicaid enhancement tax 32,035 - - 32,035

interest 3.065 1.455 48 4.568

$1.433 $763.329

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as
depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting,activities'that
are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the
expenses were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to.



DocuSign Envelope ID; E5FOOF6C-OB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(in thousands)

12. Charity Care and Community Benefits (Unaudited)

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the, level of charity care it provides. The System
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The estimated cost of
all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022

Government sponsored healthcare $35,353 $36;515

Community health services 1,507 1,281

Health professions education 2,801 2,038

Subsidized health services 52,622 50,929

Research 306 131

Financial contributions 1,405 1,440

Community benefit operations 68 89

Community building activities 786 414

Charity care costs (see Note 1) 3.465 3.389

$98.313 $96.226

The System incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare patients in excess of the payment from this
program of $82,230 and $78,563 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

13. Concentration of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

2023 2022

Patients 9% 8%

Medicare 38 42

Anthem Blue Cross ■  19 18

Cigna 3 3

Medicaid 10 11

Commercial 19 16

Workers' compensation 2 2

100% 100%
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14. . Volunteer Services (Unaudited!

Total volunteer service hours received by the System were approximately 25,000 and 23,000 in 2023
and 2022, respectively. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the System, none of
which has been recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

15. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobser\'able inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used in the valuation techniques, the System is required to provide the following information according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine,fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and

disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level I also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.

Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30,2023 and 2022. In accordance
with ASC 820, Fair Value Measuremenls, certain investments that are measured using the net value per
share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

35'



DocuSign Envelope ID: E5F00F6C-DB73-44CD-B82B-52CAFE6ADCCA

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIjCS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

j

September 30,2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

15. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fairvalue on a recurring basis at September 30:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities

Marketable equity and other securities
Inflation-protected securities and other
Trust funds administered by others.

:  78,801

25,471

163,551

16,078

10,177

10.208

Total

$ 78,801
35,648

163,551
16,078
10.208

$283.901 $10.177 $10.208 304,286

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities 205.295

S5Q9.58I

2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities

Marketable equity and other securities
Inflation-protected securities and other
Trust funds administered by others

;  34,294

35,203

136,062

15,760

10,645

9.836

$ 34,294
45,848
136,062

15,760
9.836

$10.645 $ 9.836 241,800

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities 203.040

$444.840

In addition, for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, there are certain investments totaling
$4,172 which are appropriately being carried at cost.

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.
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15. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as
follows for 2023 and 2022;

Trust Funds

Administered

bv Others -

Balance at September 30, 2021

Net realized and unrealized losses

Balance at September 30, 2022

Net realized and unrealized gains

Balance at September 30, 2023

$12,341

f2.5051

9,836

372

$10.208

The table below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funds (other than mutual funds) valued
based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

September 30,2023:
Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

September 30, 2022:
Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds
Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

Fair

Value

$22,628
12,007
44.264

13,621
4,657

47,870
7.032

7,641
45,575

: 18,489
9,645

53,791
10,329
8,250

42,296
12,582
7,008

40,650

Unfunded

Commit-

ments

32,327

25,854

Redemption
Frequencv

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual

Semi-annual

Illiquid
Daily
Weekly
Monthly

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual

Semi-annual

Illiquid
Daily
Weekly
Monthly

Redemption
Notice

Period

5 days
15 days
45 - 65 days**
60 - 90 days
60 days*
N/A

10 days
10 days
6-10 days

5 days
15 days
45 - 65 days**
90 days
60 days*
N/A

10 days
10 days
6-10 days

* Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption. A full redemption of this fund is in
progress as of September 30, 2023.

** One investment has a one-year lock period and redemption of one investment is limited to 12.5% of
the investment balance at each redemption.
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15. Fair Value Measurements (Continued!

Fixed Income Securities

The primar>' purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable
source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the
risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

Marketable Eouitv and Other Securities

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of
loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
.economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and

. capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whorn may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will,be the amount equal to the pro-rata
interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as-such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each
investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective
trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per
share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable.

The System has committed to invest up to $73,183 with various investment managers, and had funded
$33,856 of that commitment as of September 30, 2023. As these investments are made, the System
reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an asset allocation shift within the
investment pool.

Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects
of inflation.
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15. Fair Value Measurements (Continued^

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value

. of all fmahclal instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value.

16. Leases

Adoption of ASC Topic 842. Leases (ASC 842)

The System has various leases relative to its office and offsite locations. ASC 842 became effective for
the System on October I, 2022 and was adopted using the modified retrospective method for all leases
that had commenced as of the effective date, along with certain available practical expedients. The
System elected to recognize any effects of applying the new standard as a cumulative-effect adjustment
to the opening balance of net. assets in the period of adoption, which there were none. In addition, the
System elected to adopt the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
within the new standard. The practical expedient package applied to leases that commenced prior to the
effective date of the new standard and permits a reporting entit>' not to: i) reassess whether any expired
or existing contracts are or contain leases, ii) reassess the historical lease classification for any expired
or existing leases, arid iii) reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. The reporting results for
fiscal year 2023 reflect the application of ASC 842 guidance while the historical results for fiscal year
2022 were prepared under the guidance of ASC 840. The adoption of the new standard did not have a
significant impact upon the System's consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows. The adoption of the new standard resulted in the following impact: the recording of right-
of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities pertaining to the System's operating leases on the
accompanying 2023 consolidated balance sheet.

Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are reported in the System's 2023
consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Operating lease right-of-use assets $26.252

Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 5,406
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 21.091

Total operating lease liabilities . $26.497

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the total lease cost associated with the System's operating
leases was $6,319.
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16. Leases (Continued)

SuDplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023:

Operating leases- operating cash flows (fixed payments) $ 6,073
Operating leases - right-of-use assets and operating lease

liabilities recorded upon adoption of ASU 842 28,636 '
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease liabilities 2,876

Lease Term and Discount Rate

Lease term and discount rate are as follows for the fiscal year ended Septeniber 30, 2023:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) 6.97
Weighted-average discount rate 3.91%

As of September 30, 2023, maturities of operating lease liabilities for each of the following five years
were as follows:

2024 ■$ 6,324
2025 5,183
2026 4,091
2027 3,175
2028 3,091
Thereafter 8.588

Total minimum future lease payments 30,452

Less imputed interest. (3.955')

Total lease liabilities £26.497

As of September 30, 2022, future minimum lease payments prepared under the previous guidance of
ASC 840 were as follows:

2023 . $ 8,078
2024 7,038
2025 5,590
2026 3,333
2027 2,967
Thereafter 10.826

$37.832

Rent expense was $9,532 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

40
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CONCORD HOSPITAL

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

2024

Frederick Briccetti, MD
Philip Emma
Charles Fanaras, Vice Chair
Jeanie Forrester

Lucy Hodder, Esq., Secretary
Lucy Karl, Esq.
Linda Lorden

Joseph Meyer, MD
Matthew Nadeau

Peter Noordsij, MD
Manisha Patel, DDS, Chair
Ari Salis, MD ex-officio, CH Medical Staff President
Katherine Saunders

Robert Segal
Robert Steigmeyer, President/CEO ex-offido
David Weiss

Donald Welford

Treasurer (not Member of the Board):
Scott W. Sloane

01/2024 hh
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Peter A.Dow RT(R]

Education:

• Plymouth Regional High School-graduated 1988

• Manchester Technical College-Associates Degree fn Fitness

Technology (1989-1990)

• NHTI -Associates Degree in Radiology Technology (1990-1992)

Work Experience:

Per Diem:

• Concord Hospital-(1992)

• Concord imaging Center—(1992)

• Concord Orthopedicis—(1992)

• Franklin Regional Hospital—(1992)

Full Time:

• Franklin Regional Hospital-I XR/CT Scan (1992-1993)

• XRay PA-XR/Mobile XR/EKG- (1993-1995)

• Concord Hospital—XR/Mobile XR/EKG-(1995-present)

Certifications:

• ARRT {1992-present)

• ASRT (1992-present)

• BLS
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«

f

Donald Ei4cGinnis, Jr RT(R)

Education

1981- Graduated from Joseph A Foran High School-Miiford, CT

1981-1982- University of New Haven, CT-Crim/nai Justice

1983-1985- NH Technical institute, Concord, NH

Associate of Science, Radiologic Technology-Passed Registry

Work Experience

August 1985 to December 1988, staff x-ray technologist at

Franklin Regional Hospital, Franklin, NH

December 1988 to June 1995- staff and mobile x-ray

technologist for X-Ray P.A. Concord, NH

July 1995 to present- mobile x-ray technologist for Concord

Hospital, Concord, NH

*Promoted to chief technologist. Mobile X-Ray in 1999

Active member of ASRT (American Society of Radiologic

Technologists) since 1996



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Concord Hospital, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE .

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Donald McGinnis RTR Radiologic Technologist $0.00 $82,430.00

Peter Dow RTR Radiologic Technologist $0.00 $78,624.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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Led A. Sti4bioc<tc

ComalttiOMr

Eilcn M. Ltpdcrtc
CUcf EscCQfivc OfTkcr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPiTAL

36 CLINTON STRCCT, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-S300 l-«M^52-334S EiL S300

Fax: M3-27I-539S TDD Accen: |.800'735-2964
www.dbbs.ab.gov

May 13. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonoratMe CounctI

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to amend
an existing contract with Concord Hospital, Irx:. (VC# 177653), Concord. NH 03301, to provide mobile
radiology and electrocardiogram services at New Hampshire Hospital, by exercising a contract renewal
option by increasing the price limitation by $120,000 from $140,000 to $260,000 and by extending the
completion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30. 2024, effective July 1. 2022 or upon Governor and
Council approval, whichever is later. 36% General Funds. 64% Other Funds (Medicare. Medicaid and
Third Party Insurance).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 2. 2018, item #26, and
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 10, 2020, item #20A.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are anticipated to
be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the avallatxiity and continued appropriation of funds In the
future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

0$-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOaAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC

SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget.

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Cor)tracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $7,500 $0 $7,500

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $31,500 $0 $31,500

2021 101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $35,500 $0 $35,500

2022 ,101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $35,500 $0 $35,500

2023
101-

500729

Medical Pymts
to Providers

94057300 $0 $60,000 $60,000

The Dtpartment ofHnith and Human Strcieet' Miuion is to join communities andfomilits
in protvlin^ opportunities (or eilissns to ocHUve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the HcrK>rBble CouncO

Page 2 of 2

2024
101-

500729

Medical Pymts ,
to Providers

94057300
$0 $60,000 $60,000

Total S140,000 $120,000 $200,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request rs to allow the Department to continue providing radiology and
electrocardiogram services for New Hampshire Hospital patients. The Contractor will provide and
interpret mobile radiology and electrocardiogram services for patients wt>o are unable to leave the Acute
Psychiatric Services facility, as deemed appropriate by the attending physician.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from July 1,2022 through June 30.2024.

The Department will monitor contracted services by:

• Monitoring the turnaround time from when the x-ray or electrocardiogram Is taken to
the time the results are delivered.

• Monitoring the Contractor's responsiveness to requests for services from the time a .
request Is made to the time the services are provided.

•  Assessing the thoroughness of the x-ray or elec^cardiogram reports provided by the
Contractor.

As referenced in In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the remaining
two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department may not
be able to determine the severity of patients' conditions, thus jeopardizing the welibeing and recovery
of patients while In the care of New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: New Hampshire Hospital

tn the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Radiology Services contract Is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("Slate" or "Department") and Concord Hospital, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2. 2018 (Item #26). as amended on June 6. 2020 (Item #20A), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amerided and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Govemcr and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support.cpntinued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract arid set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as fotlows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$260,000.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.3. to read:

2.3 The Contractor shall take, interpret and report on Electrocardiograms (EKG). as requested by
the Department.

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.4, to read:

2.4 The Contractor shall provide X-Ray and EKG services by qualified and licensed technicians
registered with the American Registry of Radlologic Technologists.

5. Mtxfify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.5. to read:

2.5 The Contractor shall provide X-Ray and EKG services as prescribed by the New Hampshire
Hospital, subject to New Hampshire Hospital approval.

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.8, to read:

2.8 The Contractor shall have a Board Certified Radiologist read and interpret the X-Rays" and
EKGs.

7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Subsection 3.1. to read:

3.1; The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed as follows;

3.1.1. X-Ray'setvices will be reimbursed in accordance with Exhibit B-2. Fee Schedule.

3.1.2. EKG services will be reimbursed at the flat rate of $88 each.

Concord Hospilal. inc. A-S-i,2 Conlradorlnitials M
S^20l8-NHH-11-RADl6-0i^02 PageloO Dale S/hIP.'X.
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by thiS;Amendmenl remain In
full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective June 30. 2022, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/11/2022

Date Name: • Title:

Date

C—DoeuSigMd by:
-}fAn;ei2d^eph T. Caristi

Chief Financial Officer, nh Hospital

Concord Hospital. Inc.

Name: P

Concord Hospital, Inc.

SS-20ie-NHH.U-RADtO-bl-A02

A.S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DccvSiwvAbjR

Date ISame?)4>8et)Ma...<:uarino

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Couhdl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Concofd Hospital, inc. A-S-1.2
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LoriA.SblbIscnc '

,ComcBUilOD«r

Hct(ti<rM.MoQel8

Cblcf Emotive OfTleer

STATE OF NEW HAMFSHO^

DEPARTWENT OF HEALTH AJVD HUMAN SERVICES

NE>y HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

CLINTON STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.5300 1-800-852.3345 Eit 5300

r«g; 603-27I.53M TDD Acccis: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhtis.nh.20v

May 18. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. Nevy Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices. New Hampshire Hospital, to
arherid an existing solo source agreement with Concord Hospital. Inc. (Vendor# 177653). 250
Pleasant Street. Concord. NH 03301, to provide radiology services, by exercising a contract
renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $71,000 from $69,000 to $140,000 and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2020 to June 30. 2022, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. This original contract was approved by the Govempr and Council on
May 2. 2018 (Item #26). 34% General Funds. 66% Other Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
.anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, vyith the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if rteeded and justified.

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
' Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svc
94057300 $7,500 $0 $7,500

2019
-102-

500731 ■

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2020
. 102-

500731

•Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $31,500 $6 $31,500

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 •  $0 $35,500 $35,500

2022
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
94057300 $0 $35,500 ■ $35,500

Th* Deparlmtni ofHtolth and Humon Struittt'Miuion iMlojcin tfoninuiniiiei and
in prvviding oppofiuniliet for c^iieng to ochirue health and ir^dtptndtnct.
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His ExctfIcncy. G^einof Chriaopher T. Sununu
and the Hanorabia Council

P^2pf2

Total $69,000 $71,000 $140,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Cor^cord Hospital has the necessary skills and
demeanor to work successfuHy with behavior health clients. In addition, the Vendor is located in
close proximity to the Acute Psychiatric Facility allowing for quick access to services on a twenty*
four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week basis.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to continue providing radiology
services to New Hampshire Hospital patients. Concord Hospital will provide mobile radioiogy
services including interpretation of images for patients that are unable to leave the Acute
Psychlatnc Sen/Ices facility." These services include x-ray and electrocardiograrn as deemed
appropriate by the attending physician.

Approximately400 Individuals will be served from July 1,.2020 through June 30, 2022.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit 0-1,. Paragraph 3.. that allows the
Department to renew the contract for up to four (4) years, subject to the continued availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for two (2) of the
four (4) years at this time.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures: '

•  Turriaroundlirhe from when the x-rays'oreteclrocardiogram Is taken to the tirne
•  the results are delivered.

•  Responsiveness to request for services from the time a request-is made to the
time the services are provided.

•  The thoroughness or the x-ray or electrocardtogram reports frorri Concord
Hospital.

Should the Governor and Executive Council.not authorize this request, the Department
may not be able to determine the severity of patients' conditions thus jeopardizing the wellbeihg
and recovery of patients while in the care of New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: New Hampshire Hospital

Source of Funds: General Funds and Other Funds" (Medicare. Medicaid and Third Party
Insurance).

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submiiled,"

•Heather M. Moquin

Chief Executive Officer
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

State of New Hampshire '

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment 01 to the Radiology Services Contract

This 1** Amendment 1o the Radiology Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment 01*) Is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (Iwrainaftar
referred to as the 'State" or "Department") and Concord Hospital, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit wtth a ptace of business at 250 Pleasant Street. Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "ContracfO approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2. 2018, (item 026). the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/Ices based upon the terms arid
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit 0-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 03. the Contract may be amended' upon written agreerrvent of the parties
and approval frorn the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreemisnt. increase the' price limitation, of modify
the scope of services to support.continued delivery of these services; end

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions conlained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022.

2. Forrn R.37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Rrtcc Limitation, to read: . ,

.  $140,000.

3. Form Pr37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to readt:

Nathan p. White, Director. . ̂

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-27'l-9631.

5.;. Modify Exhibit 6, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Subsection 3.1., and replace it
In Its entirety to read: ' .

3.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed in accordance with Exhibit B-2,
Fee Schedule.

6. Modify Exhibit B-i Fee Schedule and replace it In its entirety with Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule.

Concord HospUsl, Inc. Amendment 01 . Cohtraclor Infiials. ss
SS-20l8.NHH-11-RADiaoi-A0l Pagolol3 bate
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New Hampa Wre Department of Hoalth and Human Services
Radiology Services

AJ1 terms and conditions of the Corbet not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain tn full force and
effect. This amendment shaD be effectrve upon the date of Govemor and Executive Coundl approval.

IN WITNE^ WHEREOF, the parties have set their harids as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Departmcnt.of Health and Human Services

M Atf^
Date' Namei'HeaiherM. Moquin

Title: . Chief Executive Officer

Concord Hospital. Inc.

Date

D'Ma
me

•TlUe: ^0

Concord Hospftal. lot • Amon<tnenl St

8S-26ie-NHH-11-RAOlO-01-AOI Pe9e2of3

!
I
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New Hampshire Oepartmerit of Health and Human Services
Radiology Services

The preccding Amendmenl. having been reviewed by Ihrs office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/28/20 .

Date Name: •

Title; Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date I Name:

Title:

Concord Hospilal, Inc. Amendment 01

SS-2dl8.NHH*11-^tOOi-AOl Page 3.of 3
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Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

' BILL ITEM

ID

ACTIVITY

TYPE COM • Description CPT

Mobile Coritract

Level 3 Price'

(Cerner Level 1

2020)

' 1169926 RadiologY 1169936 XR Abdomen XUB I View '74018 122.45

7816293 RadiologY 7816293 XR Abdomen KUB 2 Views 74019 138.91

7816296 Radlologv 7816296 XR Abdomen KU8'3 or More Views 74021 ' 148.'41

1169922 RadiologY 1169922 XR AC Joints Bilateral 73050 145.20

1169942 Radiology 1169942 XR Ankle Complete 3t Views Left 73610 127.36

1169944 Radiology 1169944 XR Ankle Complete 3* Views Right 73610 127.36

1170032 Radiology 1170032 XR Calcaneous Left. . 73650 117.32

1170034 Radiology 1170034 XR Calcaneous Right 73650 117.32

7S2240S Radiology 7522408 XR Chest 1 View 71045 115.56

1170044 Radiology 1170044 XR Chesi 2 Views w/ Obliques 71048. 136.73

7S22409 Radiology 7522409 XR Chest Decubitus Bilateral 71046 14163

7523194 Radiology 7523194 XR Chest Decubitus left 71045 123.12

7523197 Radiology . 7523197 XR Chest Decubitus Right 71045 123.12

1170075 Radiology 1170075 XR Clavicle Left 73000 123.24

1170077 Radiology . 1170077 XR Clavicle Right 73000 123.24

1170127 Radiology 1170127 XR Elbow Complete 3+Views left 73080 127.96

1170129 Radiology . 1170129 XR Elbow Complete 3-^ Views Right 73080 127.96

1170141 Radiology '1170141 XR Fadat Bones 3^ Views. 70150 ... U1.59

7S23416 Radiology 7523416 XR Femur 2 Views left 73552 . 145.68

7523419 Radiology 7523419 XR Femur 2 Views Right 73552 145.68

1170151 Radioto^. U70151 XR Finger[5) 2* Views_LeFt 73140 122.09

1170153 Radiology 1170153 XR Flnger(s) 2+ Views Right 73140 122.09

1170191 Radiology 1170191 XR Foot Complete 3f Views Left • 73630 127.96

1170193 Radiology 1170193 XR Foot Complete 3» Views Right 73630" 127.96

1170197 Radiology U70197 XR Forearm 2 Views Left 73090 127.96.

1170199 Radiology 1170199 XR Forearm 2 Views Right 73090 127.98

1170221 'Radiology 1170221" XR Hand Complete 3«-Views Left 73130 122.09

1170223 Radiology 1170223 XR Hand Complete 3*.Views Right. 73130 122.09

1170233 : Radiology 1170233 XR Hlp'2-3 Views Left 73502 116.77

117023S ■ Radiology 1370235 XR Hip 2-3 Views Right 73502 ■ " 118.77

117024S Radiology 1170245 XR Humerus Left 73060 136.19

1170247- Radiology 1170247. XR Humerus Right 73060 136.19

1170263 Radiology 1170263 XR Knee 1 or 2 Views Left 73560 122.09

1170265 Radiology 1170265 XR Knee 1 or 2 Views Right' 73560 122.09

1170269 Radiology 1170269 XR Knee 3 Views Left 73562 133.89

1170271 Radiology 1170271 XR'Knee 3 Views Right 73562 133.89

1170287 Radiology 1170287 XR Knee Complete 4* Views Left' 735'64 . . .136.19

1170289 Radiology 1170289 XR Knee.Complete 4+ View^ Right 73S64 ■ 136.19

1170301 Radlologv 1170301 XR Mandible Complete.4« Views 70110 137.21

1170329 Radiology 1170329 XR Nasal Bones 3* Views 70160 119.67

1170331 Radiolo^ 1170331 XR Neck Soft Tissue 70360 127.96

1170339 Radiology 1170339 XR Orbits > 4 Views 70200 127.96

7523295 Radiology 7523295 XRPatella'left 73560* ' 123.24

Concord Hospital, Inc. '

SS-2018NHH-03-PHYSI-01-A01 Exhibit 6-2 Fee Schedule

Contractor Initials.

Date
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ExhibH B-2 Fee Schedule

BILL ITEM

10

AbiVlTY

TYPE COM COM - Description CPT

Mobile Contract

Level 3 Price

(Cerner Level 1

2020)

7S23298 Radiology 7523298 XR Patella Right 73S60 ■ 123.24

U7D3S1 Radiology 1170351 Xfl Peh/li 1 or 2 Views 72170 121.19

75233Q1 Radiology 7523301 XR Pelvis w 1 View Hip Left 73501 ■ 136.07

7523304 Radiology 7523304 XR PeMs w 1 View Hip Right 73501 136.07

1170379 Radiology 1170379 XR Ribs leHw/PA Chest 71101 163.23

1170381 Radiology 1170381 XR Ribs Right w/ PA Chest 71101 163.23

1170377 Radiology 1170377 XR Ribs w/ PA Chest Bilateral 71111 176.24

1170387 Radiology 1170387 XR Sacroiliac Joints Views 72202 136.73

1170391 Radiology 1170391 XR Sacrum/Coccyx 2* Views 72220 137.70

1170401 Radiology 1170401 XR Scapula left 73010 127.96

1170403 Radiology 1170403 XR Scapula R«ht 73010 " 127.96

1170409 Radiology 1170409 XR Shoulder 1 View Left 73020 130.44

1170411 Radiology 1170411 XR Shoulder 1 View Right. 73020 , 130.44

1170434 . Radiology 1170434 XR Sinuses 3+ Views 70220 141.57

1170436 . Radiology 1170436 XR Skulll-3 Views 70250 121.07

1170438 Radiology 1170438 XR Skull 4-» Views 70260 127.84

1170446 Radiology 1170446 XR Spine Cervkal 1 View 72020 117.07

11704S2 Radiology 1170452 XR Spine Cervkal 2 or 3 Views 72040 127.96

1170454 Radiology 1170454 XR Spine Cervical 4 or 5 Views 72050. 144.42

1170461 Radiology 1170461 XR Spine Cervical 6+ Views 720S2 144.42

1170448 Radiology 1170448 XR Spine Lumbarsacrai 1 View 72020 .  123.24

1170470 Radiology 1170470 XR Spine Lumbosacrai 2-3 Views 72100 139.63

1170476. Radiology 1170476 XR Spine Lumbosacrai 4-5 Views 72110 163.23

1170450 Radiology 1170450 XR Spine Thorack 1 View . . 72020 . 123.24

1170484 Radiology 1170484 XR Spine Thoracic 2 Views 72070 .. .150.83

1170486 Radiology 1170486 XR Spine Thoracic 3 Views . . 72072 161.96

1170495■ Radiol^ 1170496 XR Sternum 2* Views 71120 130.44

1170516 Radiology 1170516 XR mia/Flbula Left 73590 136.19

1170518 Radiology 1170518 XR Tibia/Fibula Right 73590 148.95

1170502 Radiology 1170502 XR TMJ Open and Closed Bilateral 70330 131.04

1170S20 Radiology 1170520 XR Toe($) 2* Views Lett 73660 127.96

1170522 Radiology 1170522 Xfl Toels) 2+ Views Right ' 73660 127.96

1170612 Radiology 1170612 Xfl Wrist Complete 3» Views Left 73110 122.09

1170614 Radiology 1170614 XR Wrist Complete 3* Views Right 73110 122.09

Concord Hospital, Inc.
SS-2018-NHH-03-PHYSI-01-A01 Exhibit B-2 Fee Schedule

Contractor Initials

Date <r W-7i3Z&
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Jtllrry A. Mcj m
Cemmbtloaer

L«H A Seibincftt

CM<f E*«utlv« OfTlcer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

IS/EWHAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-S300 )-800-8S2-3345 Eic. SJOO

F#a: 603-271-5395 TDD Accws: 1-800-735-2964
H^-w.dhhs.nh.gov

April 2. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human ̂ rvices. Division of Behavioral Health. New
Hampshire Hospital, to enter into a sole source agreement with Concord Hospital. Inc. (Vendor
#177653) 250 Pleasant Street. Concord. NH, 03301, for radiology services in an amount not to exceed
$69,000 effective April 1, 2018, or upon the date of Governor & Executive Council approval, whichever
is later, through June 30. 2020. 20% Federal Funds. 34% General Funds and 48% Other Funds.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019, and are anticipated to be available in
.Slate Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget.

0^95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS:
NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State Fiscal

Year
Class Account. Description Job Number

Budget
Amount

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $7,500

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $30,000

2020 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $31,500

Total $69,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Concord Hospital has the necessary skills and demeanor
to work successfully with behavior health clients. In addition, the Vendor is located in close proximity to
the Acute Psychiatric Facility allowing for quick access to services on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7)
days a week basis.

The purpose of this agreement is to allow the Department to continue providing radiology
services to Nevy Hampshire Hospital patients. Concord Hospital will provide mobile radiology services
including interpretation of images for patients that are unable to leave the Acute Psychiatric Sen/ices
facility. These services include x-ray and EKG as deemed appropriate by the attending physician.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the Agreement, the Department reserves the option to extend
contract services for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the continued availability of ftjnds.
satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department may not
be able to determine the seventy of patients' conditions thus jeopardizing the wellbejng and recovery of
patients white in the care of New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served; New Hampshire Hospital

Source of Funds: 46% Other Funds (Medicare. Medicaid and Third Party Insurance). 34%
General Funds and 20% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Medical Assistance Program. Code of Federal Domestic
Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 1805NH05ADMIN.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this prograrn.

Respectfully submitted,

Lofifehibinette
Executive Officerlef

Approved by:i
1 Meyers

Commissioner

7^ Department ofHealth and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
.  in providing opportunities for cititons toachievo health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER p.37 (version S/8/15)
Subject; Radiology Services (SS^2QI8-NHH»I I'RADIO)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upott submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 Stale Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH0330I0857

1.3 Contractor Name

Concord Hospital, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

250 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1.5 'Contractor Phone,

Number

603-230-7279

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-87500000-

101-500729

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$69,000

1.9 Contracting OfTlcer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann. Esq., Director
Bureau of Contracts & Procurements

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

LI Coniraetor Sibnature 1.12 Name and TilleofConiractor Signatory

1.13 Acknovvledgement: Slate of /IfH .Couniyof fVA.cyTC-'Vvva. LiC

, before the undersigned ofncer, personally appeared the person ideniined in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily
proven to, t%^ose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicate

1 ^bt.13^^ ic or Justice of the Peace

sa:.-

15/

• 13^ P&iie and Tl ary or Justice of the Peace

/16^J

.D^ukhx.
t rat ion.

1.15 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

1.16 Appfbvel by the N.H. Department'of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1'^ /!-' iMi H I

1.18 Approval by the Govemory^hdiExecutive Coupdl Of appllchbldj

By: I 1 On:

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
throu^ the agency identified In block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ('•Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agrtemeni. and all obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall become efTective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTective Date").

3.21 f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Compietioh Date

.specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this A^eement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
withom limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, are
•contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
'l»ymcnts heitunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identined in block 1.6 in the event fur>ds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are Identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by referertce.
3.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature liKurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the.Services. The State
shall have no jiability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

3.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permiaed by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of taw.
3.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr. exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

. laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing end speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
informaiion to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with ail applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afHrmattvc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
proyisiohs of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal <
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Oepanment of L^bor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the-Unlted States issue to
implerhent these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he State or United States access ttf'ktiy of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts',for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at Its own expense provide all
personnel rtecessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wTlting. during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agrctmenl. This provision shall survive lenriination of ihis
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contraaing Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REfVIEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunder
("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one. or more, or all. of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTcciive two
(2) days afier giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
pf Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off againist any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat (he Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mnn all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perfomiance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
.all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any properly which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdata
requires prior written approval of the Stale.

Page

10. termination. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of

. termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the coiitrKt price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
ihc performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall ha\x authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in Ihis Agreement without the prior writtefi notice and
conseni of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and conseni of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTrcers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothitig herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserN'cd to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the prpperty.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpartmeni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New.
Hampshire.

3 of 4
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.14 J TTie Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certificaiefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Comraciing Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificaiefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any rertewals thereof shall be attached and tut
mcorporaied herein by reference. Each ceniflcate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor. f»o less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice ofcar>ceilation or modification'of the policy.

15; WORKERS'COIVlPENSAnON.
15.1 By signing this agreeimnt, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants thai the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the rcquiremenls of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("IVorkers'Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attKhed and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workera' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Haifipshlre Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of (he State to eriforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other pony
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the .
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
vraived or discharged only by an instrument in wrjiing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stalc.of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circunistances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
In favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third ponies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in (he intefpreiation, construction or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

2J. SEVERABILITY. In the cvciit any of the provistonsof
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
he-executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes (he entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page d of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The C>)ntractor will submit a detailed description of the iariguage assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to er\sure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impart on the-
Services described herein, the State Agency has the tight to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shajl
continue after June 30, 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for ariy
payments for services provided after June 30, 2019. unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 blennium.

2* Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall provide mobile X-Ray services for clients at New Hampshire

Hospital.

2.2. The Contractor shall take, interpret, and report on X-Ray images.

2.3. The Contractor shall interpret and report on Electrocardiograms (EKG) taken by and
as requested by the New Hampshire Hospital.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide X-Ray services by qualified and licensed technicians
registered with the American Registry of Radiolpgic Technologists.

2.5. the Contractor shall provide X-Ray services as prescribed by the New Hampshire
Hospital, subject to New Hampshire Hospital approval.

2.6. The Contractor shall make services available Monday through Friday. 7:00 am to
5:00 pm and on Saturdays. 7:00 am to 5:C)D pm.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide all routine X-Rays on the same day as requested by
New Hampshire Hospital.

2.8. The Contractor shall have a Board Certified Radiologist read and interpret the X-
Rays.

2.9. The Contractor shall telephone preliminary findings to New Hampshire Hospital the
sarrie day the X-Ray was taken and fax final reports within five (5) business.days.

SiS-iOie-NHH-lt-RADIO EirtbltA Contmctw Irtttou,
Concert Hotpftal. inc.
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit A

2.10. The Contractor shall provide radiologist telephone consultations and t>e on call
twenty-four (24) hours, a day. seven.(7) days a week. The Contractor shall provide a
telephone number for New Hampshire Hospital to contact the consultants.

2.11. The Contractor shall operate, maintain, and test all portable radiology equipment in
accordance with a radiation protection program that ensures the safety of those
using the equipment, those being examined, arid the environment in which
equipment being used. The Contractor will train all personnel wor1(lr)g the portable
radiology equiprhent in radiation safety.

2.12. The Contractor shall maintain records that include at a minimum the client's name
and rnedlcal record number, date the Mrvice(s) were provided, and a description of

the service(8) using the code names and numbers in Exhibit B-1. Fee Schedule.

2.13. The Contractor shall utilize the New Hampshire Hospital secure electronic
messaging system, when available, for secure exchange of client information,

2.14. The Contractor warrants that it Is Medicare and Medicaid approved and property

licensed by ihe State of New Hampshire.

2.15. The Contractor agrees to a Criminal Background Check.

2.16. The Contractor shall cornplete a required orientation of New Hampshire Hospital's
policies and safety requirements and any New Hampshire Hospital provided
continuing education classes thereafter, at the discretion of New Hampshire Hospital..
Classes include;

2.16.1. Boundaries (2 Hours)

2.16.2. Cultural Awareness (2 Hours)

2.16.3. Rehab Orientatior) (1-2 Hours)

2.16.4. Cues to Crisis (2-4 Hours)

SS-2018-NKH-11-RADIO Exhibit A ConUadof Inltlali
Concord Mojpttal. Inc. 'xlikh^

P80e2or2 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Radiology Servcles

Exhibit B-

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services,

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Other Funds from Provider Fees; and

2.3. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program Code of
Federal Donriestlc Assistance (CFDA) # 93.778.

2.3.1. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Senrices in
compliance with funding requirements.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed for services performed in accordance with Exhibit B-
1, Fee Schedule.

3.2. The Contractor will submit monthly Invoices by the tenth <10") working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
in the prior month.

3.3. invoices shall include the client's Medical Record Number, date(s) of sen/ice, and the
services provided using the code names and numbers; and rate fees in accordance with
Exhibit B-1, Fee Schedule.

3.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
accurate invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.5. Invoices must be submitted to:'

Financial Manager
New Hampshire Hospital
36 Clinton Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fundir>g under
this Contract may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of noncompiiance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

SS-2018-NHH-11-RADIO ExhaitB CoiVractor Initial*
Concert Hospital, inc.-
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BtftlbB B-1 Fee Sctediite

Concord Hospital Mobile X-Hay Services Fee Schedule

Contreet Level 3 FtBSO
9663 MXC^tX>MEN^B-1*VIEW Cordrad Levet 3 41.9563
9664 MCDABOOMEN^CUS^-VIEW Contmct Level 3 41.6564
9668 MXD^DOMEH4(UB-2.T(>4.V1EWS Contract Level 3 41.6966
9969 MX&V\Nia£.3'VtEW<LEFT Contrsct Level 3 41.es»

9670 MXOANIOE'^VlEW.RtQHT Corttact Level 3 41.6970

9672 MXC-CKEST.OECll&Rr Contract Lavel 3 41.6572

9674 MXC-CHEST.1V1EW(AP/PA) Contract Level 3 41.6574
9576 W(C.CHE8T4)ECU8.eaAT(PANB.) ContfaotLevBl3 410575
6577 MX&CHEST4>A«LAT^0BUQUE8 Contreet Level 3 41.6677
957B lbD(C.CLAVlCLE^.EFT Contract Level 3 41.6678

6679 MtXCCLAVICL&FUOHT Contract Level 3 41.6679

9580 MXC.ELBOW^OT-S-VIEWS Contract Level 3 41.8580
BSB1 MXG-EL50W.IU0HT.3-V)EWS Contract Level 3 41.6581

e8a4MXC.FAClALrBONES.5.TCM.VIBVS • Contract Level 3 41.6584
8685 MXC.FEMUR4£rr.2A4EW8 Contract Level 3 41.9585.

6588 MX&FEML»46GHT.2.VIEWS Contract Level 3 41.6588
6587 MXC.FINQER(SK£FT4iaN.2.VIEWS Contract Level 3 41.9567
6566 MXC.RN6ER(SH^lGHT4y6K^2.VIEWS Contract Level 3 41.9568
9589 MX&fOOT4^.3.VtEWS Contract Level 3 41.6569

9590 MX<>f 06T.RX3Kr.3.VIEWS Contract Level 3 41.6560
9591 MXOFOREARI41£FT.2.VtEWS Contract 3 41.9591
9592 MXC.FCREARI1MVGHT.2.VIEWS Contract Level 3 41*9592
9593 MXC.QENITAUA4»ENIS Contract Laval 3 41*9693

9596 MX(>HAN0'3.V)EWS4£FT Contract IMi 3 41*9596
9597 MXC4W1&.^VIEW8.RI0HT Contract Levd 3 41*9597

6598 MX&HIP^^*2*VtEW&MINIMlA4 Contract Level 3 41*9598
.  6599 MXC>HIP4«GHr.2*VIEW84lillNIMUM Contract Level 3 41*9599

9600 MXC41UMERUS4£FT.2.VIEVVS4fiNIMUM Contract Level 3 41*9600
9601 MXC41UMB%US4^IGHT*2-VtEW&MlNIMUM Contract Level 3 414601

6604 MXOKNEE.l.TO^.VlEWSLEFr Contract Level 3 414604
9605 MXC4<NEE.1-T04*V1EWS.RI6HT Contract Level 3 41*9605
9606 MXC404EE4.VIEWS4.EFT ■ Contract Level 3 414606
6807 MXC4<NEE.3.VIEWS4^tGHT Contract Level 3 41*9607
g608MXC4(NEE-4-OR4IORE.VIEW8*LEFT Contract Level 3 414808

9609MXC4tNEE-4OR4IOR£.VIEWSR16HT Contract Level 3 414609
9610 MXC4IANbtBL£4A/IEWSM)N[MUM Contract Level 3 414610
6611 MXC-MASTOIOS-COMPIETE Contreet Level 3 414611

6612 II1XC.NASAL40NES Contract Level 3 414612
9614 MXC.ORBrr&4-VtEWS44INIMUM Contract Level 3 414814
9616 MXC.OSCALC1S.HEEL.LER Contract Level 3 41*0615
9616 fyUC.OS.CALClS4IEEL4)IOKT Contract Level 3 41*0616
9617 MXC4>ATmM£FT Contract Level 3 414617
0618 MXC*PAtELIAWOKr Contract Level 3 414818
9619 fylXC.FELVtS-1*T04'VIEWS Contract Levri 3 414619
9620 MXC4£LVlS4kfMArAiN14<IP Contract Level 3 41.6620
9622 MX&4iaS-eiLATERAL^PA4:HE8T Contract level 3 41462
9623 MXC4UBS4.EFr<»PA4^HEST Contract Level 3 41-9623

2010 Price

10120

114.80

12.65

105J2S

10525

101.75

95.50

118.70

113.00

101.86

101.85

105.75

105.76

108.76

120.40

120.40

100.90

100.90

105.75

105.78

105.76

105.75

90.00

100.90

100.60

98.15

98.15

11255

112.55 .

100.90

100.90

110.65

110.65

112.55

112SS

113.40

127.10

68.60

105.75

96.95

96.95

101.65

101.85

100.18

112.45

146.65

134.60

2016 Price

8111.2
812628

8134.2

8115.78

8116.78
6111.93

8105.05

8130.57

8124.30
811204

811204

811623
111823

8119.63

$13244

812.44

8110.99

$1ia99
8118.33

8116.33

811623
8116.33

899.00

8110.99

8110.69
8107.97

8107.67

812.61

812281
8110.99

8110.99

8121.72
8121.72
8123.61

8123.B1

8124.74
8139.81

8108.79
$11623

8108.65
8106.65

811204

811204
8110.17

8123.70
816022
8148.38

Contractor InttiatS'.
D^:~^SpS.

Concord Hospital. Inc. Exhibit 6*1 Fee Schedule
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ExNbtt B-1 Fee Schedule

9624 MXC-RlBS-raGHT4PA01EST
Mxc-GACRO(UAC(si)JOirnrs

9626 |yWC-SACRlMAND4:OCCYX-2-VIEW^IN

9627 UXC-S&slOINT(S)
9626 MXC-SCAPULA4£FT

9829 MX&^CAPULA^GHT

9630 MXC-SHOUL0E6-AC-JO1KT&BILAT

9631 MXC-8H0UL0ER>LEFT

9632 MXOSHOULOER-RIGHT

9633 MXC^NUSES^VlEWS44tNlMUM

9635 MXC-SKUa-CESS-THAN^-VtEWS

9636 MXOSKUa-4-VIEWS^INlMUM

9638 MXC-SPtNE-CERV*W/FLEX-AND/OR-EXT

9639 MXC-SPIKE-CERVICAL-1-V1EW

9641 MX(>SPINE-GERVICAL-2-TCV3-V1EWS

9642 MXC-SPlNE-GERVICAL-4-VIEWS
9643 MXC-NECK/SOFT'TISSUE

9644 MXC-SPINE-LUMBAR-I-VIEW

9645 MXC-Sf1NE-LUMBAR-2-TCV3;VtEWS

9648 MXC-SP1NE4.UMBAR-4-VIEWS-M1NIMUU.

9848 MXC-SmNE-'mORAaC-2-VIEWS

9649 MXC-SPINS-THORACIC-VVIEW

9850 MXC^NE-TH0RACIC-APH>\T-W/O6L

9651 MXC-8TERNUM
9852 MXC-TEMPOROMANOIBULAR>)OtNT8
9653 MXC-Tia/n&tOWER-LE&LEFT

06S4 MXC-TI8/FiB4.0WER'LEG-RI6HT

9655 MXC-T0ES«XTr4£FT

9656 MXC-TOES^OOT-RIGHT
9859 MXC-WRIST-LEFT-3-VIEWS4^INIMUM

9660 MXC-WRIST'RJGHT-3-VIEWS-MlNIMUM

9661 MXC-WRlST-L£FT-WITHiMVICULAR
9882 MXC>WRIST-RiGKT.WITH44AVICULAR

9671 MXC-CHEST-0ECUD4.T

0672 MXC-SPtNE-LUMBAR-FLEX<»EXT-4VlEW

Contract Level 3 41-9624 134.90 $146.39

Contract Level 3 41-9625 113.00 $124.30
Contract Level 3 41-9626 113.80 $125.18
Contract Level 3 41-9627 108.30 $119.13

Contract Levels 41-0628 105.75 $116.33
Contract Level 3 41-9629 105.75 $116.33
Contract Level 3 41-9630 120.00 $132.00

Contract Level 3 41-8331 107.80 $118.58

Contract Level 3 41-9832 107.80 $118.58

Contract Level 3 41-9833 117.00 $128.70

Contract Level 3 41-9835 100.05 $110.06

Contract Level 3 41-8638 106.65 $116.22
Contract Level 3 41-9636 9076 $109.73

Contract Level 3 41-9639 96.75 $106.43

Contract Level 3 41-9641 10576 $118.33

Contract l.eve] 3 41-9842 119.35 $131.29

Contract Level 3 41-9643 105.75 3116.33

Contract Level 3 41-0844 101.65 $112.04

Contract Level 3 41-9846 115.40 S126.94
Contract Level 3 41-9646 134.90 $148.39
Contract Level 3 41-9648 124.65 $137.12

Contract Level 3 41-9649 101.65 $112.04
Contract Level 3 41-9850 133.85 $14754
Contract level 3 41-9651 107.80 $118.68
Contract Level 3 41-9652 108.30 $119.13
Contract Level 3 41-9653 11Z5S $123.81
Contract Level 3 41-9654 123.10 $135.41
Contract Level 3 41-9655 105.75 $116.33

Contract Level 3 41-9666 105.76 $118.33

Contract Level 3 41-9659 100.90 $110.99
Contract Level 3 41-9660 100.90 $110.90
Contract Levd 3 41-9661 108.75 $119.63

Contact Level 3 41-9662 10a75 $119.63

Contract Level 3 41-0871 101.75 $111.93

Contract Level 3 41-9672 115.40 $126.04

Concord Hospital, Inc. Exhibit 6-1 Fee Schedule

Contractor tnUals:.
Oeta:. 3/^?/A
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eliga>le
Individuals and, in the furtherance of.the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If the Contractor is permitted to deterrriine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

.2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department

3. Documentation: In addKlon to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an appGcation form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department reguWions.

5. GratuHles or KIcktMcks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make e paymertt, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstahding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and egreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services proved to eny individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor (or any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prfor to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder et a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts rea^nable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
fate which exceeds the ratis charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third par^
funders for such service. If et eny time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Finial
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Conlractorthe amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:

Ej^MC-SpedalProvtsiom Contractor Inltisli5^
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in vrhich event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found l)y the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

end other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance v^h accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently end
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ell ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department

8.2.' Statisticai Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eilgibirtty (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate end as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non .
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to finandal compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract, and the period for retention hereunder', the

Department, the United States Department of Heakh and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ell reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, exceipls and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addrtioni to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
the Department regardirig the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any parly of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipierit. his
attorney or guardian.

Exnui C - Speciel Provisions Conlroctor initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contairwl In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Corttract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contracta agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Irrformation as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shad be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed s^isfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report A final report shall be submitted within thl^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals end objectives stated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Servlcaa: Disallowance of l^sts: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Corrtract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, et its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Heatth and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Heatth and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerahlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and elj original materials
produced, including, but. not limtted to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities; Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facfltties
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county end municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws wtiich shall impose en order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facitity or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental liccnsa or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fecllity or the p^ormance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and,
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requlreme^. the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply vrith all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExMUl C - Spedsl Provlslom Contrador InUJals
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more ©nployees. it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certificatton Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than S25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational instrtutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit a certification fomi to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certiftcation Forms are available at http:/Avww.ojp.usdoi/about/ocrrpdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Umttod English Proficiency (LEP): As darifjed by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proftdency. and resulting agency guidance, r^ational origin
discrimlnetion includes discrimination on the basb of limited Errglish profidency (LEP). To ensure
compBanc© with the Omnibus Crirne Control arvJ Safe Streets Ad of 1968 and Trtle VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meanirtgful dccess to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
fottowing shall apply to all contracts that exceed th'e Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defmed in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
.  VyHISTLEBLOWERf^CHTS(SEP2013)

(a) This contract end employees woridng on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
end remedies In the pilot program ori Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language d the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3;908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall inserl the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contrador may choose to use subcontradors v^h
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or fundions for efficiency or convenience,
but lha Contrador shall retain the .responsibility end accountability for the funcllon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontrador's ability to perform the delegated
^ndlon(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifas adivities and reporting
respohsibirrtles of the subcontrador and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sandiorts If
the subcontractor's performance b not adequate. Subcontradors are subjed to the same contracUial
conditions as the Contractor and the Contrador b responsible to ensure subcontrador compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contrador.delegates.a function to a subcontractor, the Contrador shall do the following:
19.1! Evaluate the prospective 8ut)contr8ctor's ability to perform the activities. t)efore delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies adivities and reporting
res{k>nsibi!ltle$ and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontrador's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontrador's performance on an ongoing basis

PB0e4of5 DbTb
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
/esponsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its drscretion. review and approve a|l 8ut>contracts.

If the Contractor identifies diefciencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct arKl indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be*
allowable and reimbursable In accordance vnth cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financtai Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulatior^ goverrting the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds;

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a desaiption of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms end conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and speciftad in Exhfoit B of the
ContracL

FjEDERAiySTATE I^W: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, otles. orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to rT>ean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall rnean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a complation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH ar)d
fe^ral regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this,
Contract wHl not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExNbii C - Spedoi Provisions Contnclor lr\Itisls
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RgVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstar)ding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ell obligations of the State
hereunder. includtng without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the approprialion or availability of funds ̂ ected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, elimlr>ates, or otherwise
mr^ifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State .shall have the right to v^hhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
followirtg language;

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submii to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but rwt limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as
requested.

10.4 In the event thai services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are Iransrtloned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in (he Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to four (4) addrtional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Eitil&ll C-1 - R«vlsiortt to Standard Provtslora Contractor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160of the Drug«Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and putiiished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will rr^aintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees artd sut>-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each fedemi fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. .The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled sut>stance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an oiigoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations,

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirerhenl that each employee to'be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
oon'victiph;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must.provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Etfilbit 0 - CeniricaUon regsrding Drug FrM Conuador Irtltlals
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, wKh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to end including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partictpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good failh effort to continue to maintain a drug>free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the &ite(s) for the performance of work done in
connection wHh the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are worikplaces on file that are not kJentified here.

Contractor Name;

DatP f N^rne: UA
Title: cfo

Exn&iit 0 - Certiflcatibn regsrdino Drug Free Contredor trriUals
Workplace Requkemenlj ..
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101 *121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to-have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Gertera! Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Prograrhs (Indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under TKle IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under THle IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agertcy, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt>er of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modific^n of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated fundis have been paid or will be paid to any person for
inftuendng or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submK Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned sl^ll require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at ail tiers (including subcontracts, 8ut>-grants. and contracts under grartts.
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-redpients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not mora than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

0

L
Title:

Dati

exWbll E - CertlflcaBon ReflBnJing Lobbyinfl Contradof InilJats
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
frND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debanoent.
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sectiorw 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 4
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective pnmary participant is providing the

edification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not oewssarily result in denial
of parficipation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participart shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective pnmary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this trarisaction.

3. The certification in this clause fe a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prosp^ive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauit.

4 The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its cei^ication was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5  The terms 'covered transaction,* 'debarred.' 'suspended.' •ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participaht.' 'person.* 'primary covered transaction; 'principal.* 'proposal.* and
•voluntafily excluded.' as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.. See the
attached definitions.

6 The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, dedared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (hat it will include the
clause titled 'Ccrtificalion Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8  A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that H Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntanly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participent may
decide the, method and frequency by which K determines the eliglbili^ of Its principals. Each
participarit may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement.Lisl (of excluded parties).

9 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall bo construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExNbil F - Ce/tlftcitJon ReganUng Oebarmert. Suipenjlon Contractor initials,
And Other Resporoibillty Matters
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Information of a participant is riot required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. ̂ cept for ̂ nsactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered Iransacton with a person \^o is
suspended, debarred, ir^ligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
additiori to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prespectrve primary participant certifies to the best of its krtowtedge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Slate or k>cal)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receivi^ stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemrnental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicatioiVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default,

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certrfication, such prospective participant shall attach an ex^anation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certrftes to the best of its knowledge and belief that it end its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier particlpanl is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wiD
include this clause entitled 'Certificatton Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower fier covered trerisactions.

Contractor Name:

Oai? NameT^o^M^^'PC'^
Title:

aM»vafii07i3
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CERTIFiCATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL N0NDISCRIMINAT10N. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identlTied in Sedicn 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identrfied in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiftcallon:

Contractor Will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control ar)d Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or beneFits. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2(X)2 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2(XX)d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibKs recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131*34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection oif the taws for faith-tosed and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and poticy-rhaking
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, wtiich protects employees against
reprisal for certain whlst[e blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExhibiiG
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admlnrstrative agency makes a finding of
discnmination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of tha Tinding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health.and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as ideritified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceitificaiion:

1. By signing and submitlmg this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

le' Nasrte: 5^4 U)Date

Title:

ExWDllG
Cor^'iraaor inltists
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in.any portion of any indoor facilHy owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, educatiori,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, ban. or ban guarantee. The
law do^ not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medbaid funds, and.portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisbns of the law may result in the imposHbn of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposHbn of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisbns agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute thefolbwing
certificatbn:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applbablo provisions of Publfc Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pj-o-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

hU'\ /(8 j) ■
Date ' ' Nam^:

Trtle.

EihlbH H - Certtdcalloo Regarding Contractor 1r»iUal»
Envtronmerxa Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall rnean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Senrices.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of F^ral Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desiariated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' jn 45 CFR
Section 164:501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164,501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the HeaHh Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlir, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.M1(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information* In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law' In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - Ail terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Asaoclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Bustr>ess Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is pennltted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was

.  disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a.
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to ̂ k appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e.. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObtlaaBons and Actlvltlea of Business Aasoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health mfonmation of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be

-  limited to: .

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has baan

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

0. The Business Associate shall comply with ail sections of the Privacy^ Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its txjslness associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a.direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivirtg PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make av8ilat>le during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI.to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's com^iance with the terms of the Agreen^ht.

g. WHhin ten (10) buslness'days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directjed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related, to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make avallatjle
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide art accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. in the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall wHhIn two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. •' Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
desbuction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has l)een otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHi has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by ̂ siness Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the u^ or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity h^ agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or di^losure of
PHI.

s.

(6) Tefmlnatton for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may imrnediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's Knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
.determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mlacellaneous

a. Definttior>s and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicat>le federal and state law.

c. Data OwnerishlD. The Business Associate acknovriedges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
personfs) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. retum or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

department of Health and Human Services

The State Name of the Contractor

ighature^of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative
iL

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Represeritative

Date

tx) ■
Name of Authorized Representative

AFb
Title of Authorized Representative

3/^^/18
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CFRTinCATIQN REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT <FFATA\ COMPUANCE ^ ^

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010. to report ori
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but sub^uent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25 000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
.4. NAICS code for contracts fCFpAprogrem number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the erttity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal goverwnent. and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annualiy artd

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
. the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Lew 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward arid Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to compty with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Date

U
o:Na

Title:

CUOH>en 10713

Exhlbtl J - CertWicHion ResanJIog the Federal Fundins. Contrador IniUals —
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forma

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annu^
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants. 8ut>grants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

i/ NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to P2 above is YES, please answer the foUpwing:

3. Does the public have ̂ ess to Information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports Tiled under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.7Bm(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Coda of
1986?

NO .y YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please ar^wer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated, officers in. your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuocenioro
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DHHS Inifprmatlon Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foliowing terms.may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" mews the loss of contrpl» compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potenlial access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance ̂ nefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case.Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health jarid
Human Services (DH.HS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
• of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's erhployee,
business associate, sutKontractor, other downstream u^r, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a
system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without (he owner's knowledge, instruction, or

V4.LJstt^eaie 2.07.2018 ExhMtK Corsractor InUats.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by
means of the State, to transmit] will be considered an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential
DHHS data.

8. ''Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomctric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other persona) or identifying information which Is
linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's
maiden name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the
United States Department of Health and Hurnan Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R.
§160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Pan 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, dlsclosCi maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

V4. Last update Z07.2018 ExMMK CUjnlractor Ir^Uals
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use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract,

n. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Aj^lication Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure t^smission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS data.

3. Encrypted Email. Erid User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.
.SSL ertciypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified
ground mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.
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7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password*protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to

access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User^s mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will
be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structxire the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24'hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

Ill, RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected, in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State ofNH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End Users
in support of protecting Department conndenlial information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain alt electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2
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5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FcdRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-vjral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malwarc utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster

• recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev I, Guidelines for
M^ia Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include ail details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for rdention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Sute and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othchvise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also knovm as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:
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1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Dcparlmcht
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the inlbrmalion lifccycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media
used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store .Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities arc in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor wijl provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

.6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those
for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department syslcm(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Dcpartmeni determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant lo 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Dcpartmeni and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

.  9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
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scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New
Hampshire or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States
unless prior express written consent is obuined from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associate with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but
not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy

. Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts
160 and 1^) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information
and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State ofNew Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vcndor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two (2) hours of the time
that the Contractor leams of its occurrerKC. This includes a confidential information

breach, computer security incident, or suspected b^ch which afTects or includes any
State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform
their ofncial duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:
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a comply with siich safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times!

c. ensum that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Fl.orPFI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive
such information.

c. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsitc inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPA A,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.
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The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures^and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P07;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact program and policy:

(insert Office or Program Name)
(Insert Title)
DHHS-Contracts@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSccurityOfficc@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS cbrtiact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOfficc@dhhs.nh.gov

E. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.OfTiccr@dhhs.nh.gov - .....
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